The effort took from September until the end of November. They are available to testify here this morning.

Professor Weiss received a B.E.E. degree from the City College of New York in 1952, and an M.S. in electrical engineering from Columbia University in 1957. From 1957 until 1964, he worked as a project engineer for the Federal Scientific Corp., and from 1965 until 1974 he was vice president of that corporation for acoustical research. He is presently a professor in the Department of Computer Science of Queens College of the City University of New York, a position he assumed in 1974.

Professor Weiss is the author of over 30 articles and technical reports concerning electronics for acoustical engineering. He has worked on projects such as the development of instruments for real-time spectrum analysis of audio signals; development of the first real-time system for extraction of vocal pitch using the cepstrum approach; and he is currently involved in development of techniques for reducing wide band noise and other interference on speech recordings to increase the detectability and intelligibility of speech.

From November 1973 until June 1974, Professor Weiss was a member of a panel of technical experts appointed by Chief Judge John J. Sirica to examine the White House tape recordings in connection with the Watergate grand jury investigation.

He is a fellow of the Acoustical Society of America and a member of the Institute of Electrical & Electronics Engineering.

Mr. Ernest Aschkenasy received a B.E.E. from the City College of New York in 1967, and his M.S. from the City College of New York in 1972. From 1967 until 1974, he worked as an engineer with the Federal Scientific Corp., where he had primary responsibility for the development of computer programs for analysis and reduction of large volumes of acoustic data. In 1974, Mr. Aschkenasy also assisted in the Watergate tape analysis and began his present work as a research associate for the Department of Computer Science at Queens College of the City University of New York, where he is presently acting as Prof. Mark Weiss' assistant.

It would be appropriate at this time, Mr. Chairman, to call as witnesses Professor Weiss and his associate, Mr. Aschkenasy.

Chairman STOKES. The committee calls Professor Weiss and Mr. Aschkenasy. May I ask both of you to stand, raise your right hand and be sworn? Do you solemnly swear the testimony you give before this committee is the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth, so help you God?

Mr. WEISS. I do.

Mr. Aschkenasy. I do.

Chairman STOKES. Thank you. You may be seated. The committee recognizes deputy chief counsel Gary Cornwell.

TESTIMONY OF PROF. MARK WEISS AND MR. ERNEST ASCHKENASY

Mr. CORNWELL. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Professor Weiss and Mr. Aschkenasy, are you familiar with the work of Dr. Barger and his team of scientists at Bolt Beranek & Newman, which led to Dr. Barger's testimony in September of this year before the committee? Mr. WEISS. Yes; we are. Mr. CORNWELL. When did you first have the opportunity to review that work?

Mr. WEISS. In August of this year we examined the results of Dr. Barger's analysis up to that time, and also reviewed the plan for the reconstruction experiment to be conducted in Dallas and judged whether the experiment was necessary to be performed. We did visit Dr. Barger at his lab in Cambridge, Mass., and had a lengthy discussion with him, saw his result, and reported back to the committee that in our opinion the reconstruction experiment was not only fully justified but also necessary for the continuance of his analysis.

Mr. CORNWELL. So at that time you simply reviewed the processes and techniques that Dr. Barger was using and specifically you did so for the purpose of rendering an independent opinion to the committee as to the necessity of going to Dallas and conducting the lab test; is that correct?

Mr. WEISS. That is correct.

Mr. CORNWELL. After the hearings of September were concluded, were you again asked to look at the work of the team of Bolt, Beranek & Newman in more detail?

Mr. WEISS. That is correct. We were asked to take a more detailed look at not only their work, but also at the Dallas police tape recording.

Mr. CORNWELL. What was the purpose of that request? What were you asked to do on this occasion?

Mr. WEISS. The object there was to perform a refined analysis of the data relating to the presumed shot occurring, the third possible shot that was examined by Dr. Barger, the one that was thought to have been the result of a gun firing at the grassy knoll.

Mr. CORNWELL. And you began that work in early October? Mr. WEISS. That is correct.

Mr. CORNWELL. And you just very recently concluded the work; is that correct?

Mr. WEISS. Yes, sir.

Mr. CORNWELL. Based upon the work, were you able to reach a conclusion with any greater degree of certainty as to whether or not that shot did or did not occur?

Mr. WEISS. Yes, sir, we did.

Mr. CORNWELL. And what was your conclusion?

Mr. WEISS. It is our conclusion that as a result of very careful analysis, it appears that with a probability of 95 percent or better, there was indeed a shot fired from the grassy knoll.

Mr. CORNWELL. Let me ask you—just very, very recently you reached that conclusion—would you tell us why it was that it took from early October until just very recently to complete your work?

Mr. WEISS. Yes, sir, our problem was that we had other obligations in addition to working on this problem. We have a major contract with the Air Force for development of some special purpose speech processing equipment, and in order to both work on that and work on this problem, we could not work on this problem fulltime.

Mr. CORNWELL. Would you very generally describe for us what the scientific principles are that you utilized in your work?

Mr. WEISS. Well, the principles are basically the fundamental principles in acoustics, namely, that if someone makes a loud noise somewhere, like here [witness claps his hands], that sort of thing, everybody in this room can hear that noise, which means that sound moves out in all possible directions. A second principle is that that sound which they hear directly also will bounce off walls and be reflected. So they will hear not only the direct sound but also sounds called echoes bouncing from walls, corners, and other surfaces. The third principle, also very fundamental, is that the speed of sound is constant in whatever direction it may go. So that the farther you are from the source of the sound, the longer it will take for that sound to reach you, whether that source is, in fact, the original source of the sound or a reflecting surface which would cause an echo. I would like to illustrate basically what is meant by echoes at this point here. I think everybody is pretty much aware of what happens if you stand at a canyon and holler something like "Hello" and you get back a series of "Hello, hello, hello," that sort of thing. You can hear each of these echoes in such a circumstance because the reflecting surfaces are quite far apart from you and from each other. In a situation such as an echo generated in Dealey Plaza, you have reflecting surfaces, also the walls and corners of the buildings there. They, too, will generate echoes, but they will tend to come in very much more closely in sequence so that even if you have a very short, sharp sound such as a rifle firing, OK, or again a clap of the hands, you will get back what to an observer or many observers will sound like a single, loud bangtype thing. But if you were to record that and play it back at onequarter or one-eighth the speed you recorded it, you will be able to hear something like the independent echoes coming back, in fact what you would hear would be something like bang-bang-bangbang, and diminishing in amplitude as you get echoes over longer periods. To the human ear you don't hear that because the first loud sound partially deafens the ear, and it decreases your sensitivity to the later arriving sounds. What you hear is a single loud sound with a diminishing intensity.

Mr. CORNWELL. In what we might describe as a complex urban type of environment with a number of different solid structures in it such as you might find in any city or in Dealey Plaza, do I understand, then, that the echoes would arrive back at a varied spacing in time; they would not all arrive back at the evenly spaced intervals?

Mr. WEISS. That is correct. They will arrive back at spacings which depend entirely on where the listener is relative to the surfaces that produce the reflections that generate the echo paths and also it will depend on where the source of the sound is.

Mr. CORNWELL. So if then you were given one location for the listener and one location for the sound source, would you get the same type of pattern time after time if you reproduce the sounds from that location?

Mr. WEISS. Yes. In fact, if you had to listen, as in the specific case of Dealey Plaza, if you had a listener standing someplace in the Plaza, say on the sidewalk near the depository building, and he stood still and a rifle was exactly held in another place, as the rifle fired, he would hear a succession of echoes. If it was fired again, he would hear identically the same succession of echoes if nobody moved. If he came back 15 years later and the buildings were the same, as they are in this case, and he stood in the same spot and a rifle was fired from exactly the same spot and the temperature of the air was the same he would, in fact, even then hear exactly the same sequence of echoes. If somebody is standing close by, but not in exactly the same place, he will hear a similar succession of echoes but not identically the same. There will be small measurable differences. The farther away the other listener gets from the first person, the greater the difference will be in the pattern of echoes that he hears.

Mr. CORNWELL. And likewise, I take it if you were to move the location of a sound source, whether it is someone clapping their hands or rifle fire, you also, by moving it a few feet, would get a different echo pattern?

Mr. WEISS. You would get a different echo pattern.

Mr. CORNWELL. How well established are these acoustics principles you have been describing?

Mr. WEISS. These have been established a very long time. They have been known for several hundred years. These are fundamental things in acoustics, the things taught in high school or college undergraduate level physics.

Mr. CORNWELL. Were there other more complex or more sophisticated principles that you were required to use in your analysis which were not so well established, which were newer or less well established?

Mr. WEISS. No, sir. We only needed to apply these basic well-tested, well-established principles; nothing more.

Mr. CORNWELL. In your analysis, what equipment were you required to use?

Mr. WEISS. Basically we used a large plan map of Dealey Plaza. Mr. CORNWELL. A survey map?

Mr. WEISS. A survey map; that is correct. The scale was 1 inch corresponding to 10 feet in Dealey Plaza. We used a long graduated ruler that could be extended to measure long distances on the map. We used a hand calculator for computing some very simple things, and we used a device, an electric device called an oscilloscope, for observing the wave shapes of the sounds that we got when we played back tape recordings, and also a device that enabled us to plot these patterns on paper so that we could examine them in very fine detail.

Mr. CORNWELL. Were you required to use anything sophisticated such as a computer or anything beyond what you have mentioned?

Mr. WEISS. No, sir. This is the only equipment that we used.

Mr. CORNWELL. Would you very generally describe what the basic process was that you went through in applying these principles to the available data?

Mr. WEISS. Well, basically the idea was this. As I indicated, each position in the plaza would have a unique set of echoes associated with it. If a sound heard on the police tape was, in fact, the sound of gunfire heard by a microphone—and a microphone, remember, is kind of an electronic ear—it hears the same as an ear will hear—if that indeed was the case, then I ought to be able to find a position for that microphone and a position for the gun such that I could predict a pattern of echoes that would match the sounds heard on the police tape to a high degree of accuracy. I could then say that this kind of match of a predicted pattern with the observed pattern is so close that the probability that what I am really looking at on the Dallas police tape is noise becomes very small. So we set out to be able to predict what the echo structures would be at various locations in Dealey Plaza. This was the whole art of it. As I say, it was done by using the simple concept that sound would travel in all directions from a source and that it will reflect off surfaces and travel back.

Mr. CORNWELL. In your attempt then to calculate various echo patterns and find out if they precisely matched or relatively precisely matched what is on the Dallas police tape, did you or were you required to use in any way the test that Dr. Barger conducted with his team from B.B. & N.?

Mr. WEISS. Yes, sir, that set of test data, in fact, proved to be invaluable in this case. It was by analysis of a number of these firings that Dr. Barger and his associates recorded in, I guess it was, August of this year that we got to become familiar with the acoustical structure of Dealey Plaza. By using these recordings in conjunction with this map of Dealey Plaza, we got to know where the buildings—where were the reflecting surfaces that gave rise to the echoes that could be heard.

Mr. CORNWELL. In addition to the tests that Dr. Barger conducted, did you need anything else, any other information in order to follow this process?

Mr. WEISS. Well, yes. We needed, in order to perform this prediction process, we needed to know a number of things. First, we needed to know where the sources of sound were.

Now, of course, that means we had to have some idea of where a shooter might have been, and by all indications, he had to be someplace up on the grassy knoll, and we had that area taken care of.

We had to know, of course, also where the reflecting surfaces were. That is for a particular assumed position of the microphone, where the major reflecting surfaces were. So we had to refine our understanding of how the echoes were produced in that case. We had to know approximately where the motorcycle was, because although this technique is simple and straightforward, it can become pretty tedious if you don't know approximately where or reasonably well where the motorcycle is, and you can assume it to be anywhere in the Plaza. So we had to have some idea where it was. And what we assumed was that it was approximately in the neighborhood of that microphone that gave the strongest matching pattern in Dr. Barger's experiment between a shot from the knoll and the impulses audible on the police tape recordings.

Furthermore, in order to calculate the echo times, the time of arrival at each of these echoes, we had to know what the velocity of sound was in the air. As I said before, the velocity of sound is constant in all directions. However, it is not always the same value. In particular, it is a function of the temperature of the air. So we had to find out what was the temperature of the air at the time of the assassination. And that was about all we really had to know in order to perform the prediction. Mr. CORNWELL. Would you have an opinion to know what speed the tape recorder ran at that recorded the initial sounds?

Mr. WEISS. Yes. We had an estimate from Dr. Barger that the speed of the tape recorder was about 5 or so percent slow from a normal, nominal speed, and we had to build this factor into the correction of time observed on the tape so we could get a time interval for the echoes, if, indeed, these impulses are echoes, that would be true for a correctly running tape.

Mr. CORNWELL. Just to be sure I understood one statement you made, you said you needed to know the source of the sound, the location of the source of the sound, and the location or approximate location of the motorcycle.

Do I understand from that that what you are saying is you need to know a general area in which to begin making your calculations?

Mr. WEISS. That is correct, that is what I meant. As I said, I assumed that the motorcycle would have been somewhere in the vicinity of microphone 4, for example, which was down on Elm Street in the experiment performed by Dr. Barger.

Mr. CORNWELL. So you didn't take as a given that the motorcycle was in that location, and you simply began to look in that general area.

Mr. WEISS. That is correct, and if we had not found it, we would have looked in a wider and wider zone.

Mr. CORNWELL. Ultimately you may have found it was not even in the Plaza.

Mr. WEISS. That is correct. In fact, this brings up another point. If, in fact, after diligent searching we could not get a pattern of echoes, a predicted pattern of echoes, that would sufficiently closely match the impulses visible on the police tape recording, then we would have to conclude either that we did not have a shot recorded there, or that if we did have a shot recorded, then the motorcycle was not anywhere near the position we had assumed it to be, or the shooter was not anywhere near the position we assumed to be, or both conditions.

Mr. CORNWELL. Mr. Chairman, I would ask at this time that we leave exhibit F-361, which has previously been admitted, on the easel, and also add to it, the exhibit F-349, which was previously admitted in these hearings in September, and, in addition, I would request that exhibits F-672 and F-667 be admitted into evidence and displayed so that all four exhibits are displayed simultaneously.

Chairman STOKES. Without objection, they may be entered into the record and displayed appropriately.

[The exhibits follow:]

Test Pattern for Shot 8 (Knoll, Target No. 3) Received at Array 3, Microphones 4, 5, and 6

Echo Pattern From Stuck-Transmitter Recording Beginning at Time 145 Seconds.



JFK Exhibit F-349



JFK Exhibit 672





Mr. CORNWELL. Professor Weiss, I would ask, if you would be able to, utilizing those exhibits, to actually illustrate for us the process that you employed in reaching your final conclusion.

Mr. WEISS. Sure.

Just to illustrate briefly what I was saying before, here is a photograph of Dealey Plaza, and let's assume for a moment that you have an observer standing right around over here, sort of visible on the street between these two trees, and then you have a source of sound in this area here, which would be behind the wooden stockade fence on the grassy knoll.

Now, if he fires a rifle at this point, the sound of that firing will go directly to the observer over here. It will also go to this building over here, the so-called DCRB, Dallas County Records Building, and bounce back to the observer. It will also go to the corner of these buildings here, and each of these corners' reflections will then bounce back.

Now the time taken for the sound, the original sound to reach the observer depends, of course, upon how far the observer is from the rifle—and by the "observer" here, it could be an individual or it could be a microphone—and this time is the distance the sound travels divided by the velocity of sound, which is approximately, say, 1,100 feet per second.

Now, the time taken for this echo here to come back to the observer will be the total distance taken going from the rifle to the building and then back to the observer, also divided by the velocity of sound. As you can see, each of these echo paths will have a different length. Therefore, there will be a different travel time for each echo. What that means is that you will hear first the one sound and then a whole series of them coming in, each of these coming in after the first sound you hear.

Now, this exhibit illustration here shows the intensity of the sounds that were received by microphone No. 4 in the Dallas reconstruction experiment for a shot fired from the grassy knoll area. Microphone 4 was in fact approximately over here.

This first rather tall, dark line, which I hope is visible to everyone, is, in fact, the intensity of the sound received for the direct muzzle blast, the first sound. Following that, there are a series of dark lines which are, in fact, the echoes coming into the microphone following its receiving the muzzle blast sound. Way out over here, about three-tenths of a second after the first one, is another sound, and there are some others that are further out and sort of getting smaller and smaller and so on.

Now, the way you use this information in identifying the echogenerating sources is as follows. Here is a topographic survey map of Dealey Plaza which gives us a better view of where things are, it is turned around from the way that one is. Here is Elm Street. This is Houston Street. Elm Street. Here is the grassy knoll area. Here is the position of microphone No. 4. The shooter is here. The sound goes from here directly to here. It also goes to this building, bounces off it, goes back to the microphone. It goes to various corners represented over here for various other structures and buildings. And all is recorded.

Now, supposing we want to know what was the echo producing surface that gave rise to this echo in the recording. Well——

Mr. CORNWELL. Professor, excuse me one more time.

Mr. WEISS. Sure.

Mr. CORNWELL. The wiring is having trouble picking up your voice. Could we move the mike up perhaps to your tie or lapel? Mr. WEISS. OK.

Now we know what the time taken for the direct sound to reach the microphone was, because we know the distance precisely from the rifle to the microphone.

Mr. CORNWELL. And again you are still now talking about on the test?

Mr. WEISS. Yes, this is simply for the purpose of confirming our understanding of exactly where, and it is important to know exactly where, the echo-generating surfaces are.

Mr. CORNWELL. So you, in other words---

Mr. WEISS. So this location is approximately in Dealey Plaza. Mr. CORNWELL. So, in other words, you are using Dr. Barger's test waves, which are the exhibits you have been referring to, and when those were generated, of course we were all standing there watching, and we know exactly where the shooter was located and exactly where the microphone was. Is that correct?

Mr. WEISS. That is correct. We had good information as to where both of these points were so we could know in advance what the distance was from the shooter to the microphone, and we knew what the time would be that it took for the sound to go directly from the rifle to the microphone.

Now, we also know what the additional time was from the time that the first sound of the rifle was received to the time this echo here that we are interested in was received. If you add this amount of time to the direct time, you have a total time taken to go from here to some echo-generating surface and to the microphone. All right? If you know what that total time is, you can, therefore, predict what the total path length was. OK? Because you now take that total time, now you multiply it by the velocity of sound, and you can compute how many feet, in fact, that sound traveled before it came back and was recorded as this highest peak at this point.

Fine. What you do is the following: Knowing the length of that path—and this is scaled, as I said, approximately at 1 inch equals 10 feet—you can find out the length of that path in inches; you simply cut a piece of string to that length—and I just happen to have some string here pre-cut.

Now I am going to put a pin in here at the position of the rifle. I am going to put another pin in at the known position of the microphone.

Now this piece of string, the length of this corresponds, in fact, to the distance the sound must have traveled in order to have produced this echo. And I sort of now loop it between here and here.

Now sound travels in straight lines so that this string if—I hope it is visible—now if I pull tight on it, it forms two straight lines. It will form a line going from the rifle to some reflecting surface and then bouncing from that surface back to the microphone.

OK. Well, so we start looking—well, there is nothing out here, over here—and what you do is move the string along here over until it intercepts a surface. Well, in passing through here, has to go further, so this can't be it. And you keep on trying, and because it is easier to do with a pencil, OK, so we can now sort of see the arc formed, the possible positions for a reflecting—a surface that will generate an echo.

And as I bring it along, you can see that it just touches this building over here. If I proceed on, it moves away from it, and, in fact, this is the only point at which this line will just touch the surface. It can't go beyond it, and can't fall in front of it. It just, just touches it in order to be considered to be a surface that generated that echo. And so we have now the location of the surface that produced this echo over here. And it is, in fact, the wall of the Dallas County Records Building.

Now we can take another echo, just to illustrate the process again. We take one that's closer in; we pull out this string; and for that one, again, the same calculation. We know what the time to get from the rifle to the microphone is. We know what the time, later, that we hear this additional echo is, so we know how long that echo actually traveled from the rifle to some surface back to the microphone. And we do the same thing: We compute that in terms of real distance, and then we cut a string according to that distance, scaled to this map. I hook one end of it around the position of the rifle.

As one can see, one does not need a large digital computer to do this kind of thing. Put one end where the microphone or observer is, and we start again doing this business of stretching, and, as again you can see, there is really nothing in here that just touches anything.

So we try the other side here and, lo and behold, we hit this corner over here. There's a wall that is apparently about 4 or 5 feet high at this point, and this string has now just touched this point, so that for this instance the echo traveled from the rifle to this corner of the wall, and now back up to the microphone.

So that's how we identified or confirmed these two points as echo-generating surfaces.

Well, we picked out, in fact, a total of some 20 or so, or 22 actually, echo paths that we were able to determine by analysis of exactly this sort, just continuing on down the line, picking up these echoes as they can be seen on here and using this technique to actually find where they were generated.

Mr. CORNWELL. Then from that process, as I understand, you were able to sort of confirm what the real echo structure of Dealey Plaza was?

Mr. WEISS. Yes, sir.

Mr. CORNWELL. Which surfaces in it generated echoes from roughly the area of the grassy knoll and being received roughly in the area of the second pin?

Mr. WEISS. That is correct. These surfaces would be correct for that set of conditions for something out here and for something in around here. For something elsewhere it would have been perhaps a different set of echo-generating surfaces.

Mr. CORNWELL. So after you had made that determination, what use did you make of what you had learned?

Mr. WEISS. OK. As I said earlier, the objective was to be able to see if we could, in fact, predict a set of echoes that would closely match the impulses that we could hear and observe on the Dallas police tape recording.

Now this is a wave form chart of the Dallas police tape recording. Here is actually what you hear, but this is what it looks like in terms of the variations of electrical signals as times goes on. Here is time moving along in this direction, and here's how the signal strength varies. It's a big bang here and here and here (indicating).

These are primarily the impulses I am talking about in this set of data.

Mr. CORNWELL. Let me ask you, before you begin to describe that exhibit: Why is it that the wave form which you have printed there from the Dallas P.D. tape appears to us to look absolutely nothing like the test tape wave forms that Dr. Barger created?

Mr. WEISS. Dr. Barger's wave form here represents the total power or strength of the signal as we see it.

The problem here was to actually be able to look, indicate points where that energy level was significantly above the background noise level, which was relatively quiet here, but also to get some sense of the relative strengths of these echoes coming back. This is different because we were interested in very precise measures of time elapsed from any point to any other point in this pattern.

Mr. CORNWELL. In other words, it's simply a different way of displaying—

Mr. WEISS. That's all it is.

Mr. CORNWELL [continuing]. The sound?

Mr. WEISS. The same information is displayed in both of them; yes, sir.

Mr. CORNWELL. In other words, it is the space between the peaks, and not whether they go up or below the line, that is important?

Mr. WEISS. That is correct.

Mr. CORNWELL. OK. Would you proceed?

Mr. WEISS. Now what we did, very simply, was, we put a shooter someplace on the knoll over here, we put a microphone someplace in the plaza over here, and then we started the prediction process.

Now the prediction process is sort of the reverse of the process we had used before.

Could I have the scale? Thank you.

In the prediction process, you don't know, of course, where the shooter is, and you don't know where the microphone is. You make an assumption. You say, "Well, I am going to put him down over here somewhere, let's say the corner of the fence, and I am going to put the microphone over here, let's say somewhere on to the right side, closer to the north side of Elm Street here," and, OK, fine.

So now I have this position here; I can measure off on here what the total path length is, and I can convert that into the time it would take for the sound to travel directly from here to here. Fine.

Now I know where my echo-generating surfaces are, so I now can measure from the rifle to an echo-generating surface to a point; and then I can measure from that point, let's say, back to the microphone. I have a total path length; I can convert that into the total time it took for this echo to travel from here to this position here. Now I know that original direct travel travel time; I know the echo time. The difference between these two corresponds to the time spacing—say, in this case—between this large bang of the muzzle blast, and some echo time.

Now I believe there is a blackboard here that I can use. Is there chalk?

Let me just sort of represent things this way here.

Chairman STOKES. Professor, can you turn the blackboard just a little bit so the committee can see it?

Mr. WEISS. Surely. We will move this back again later on.

OK. Supposing that, in fact, this represents time running along here, and this is the time at which you received the muzzle bang itself, OK, which would correspond to this again, this first large dark mark on the exhibit there, and I have computed now for this first position echo a time that that echo would arrive, which might be, let's say, over here. OK, that's one echo.

Now I go ahead and I say, OK, that's one surface. I know there are other surfaces here, and I start computing the echos that would be received at that position of the microphone for that position of the shooter, I have assumed when echoes would come in from other surfaces that are known to be echo generators for this set of positions, and I might get some kind of pattern, OK, like this, and I would want to compare that with, in fact, the pattern for the Dallas police tape recording.

And so I line up what looks like the muzzle blast, the sound, which is this very first, very large peak over here, and I say, all right, that one corresponds to this over here, so let's put this one in over here; and now I have a set of sounds which sort of looks like this.

And then there are a few things out further here, and then maybe something else out over here.

Well, you crank this all through, and you find it doesn't match at all. This is nowhere near it, so what you do is, you start moving the microphone around and/or moving the motorcycle—pardon me, the rifle—around.

Mr. CORNWELL. In other words, what you have concluded by the very first choice, arbitrary choice, is that the shooter was not in the location you chose, or the microphone was not in the location, or both?

Mr. WEISS. That is correct, or both—you don't really know—both are variables. So we start moving them around. The whole process is one of experimentation, trial and error, until finally you begin to get some set of data that begins to look reasonable, and then you can close in on a set of positions that will give a reasonably good and accurate match.

Well, this is, in fact, what happened. I got a set of positions which gave an extremely good match to this early set of echoes. This is the Dallas Police Department tape; these are the predictions. OK, here's what is actually being matched to, the observed data, and this is the predicted data.

Now after a while we got some very good agreements with this set of data here that was not as good for the echoes that were out at a distance there. All right, so we started adjusting again until, in fact, we got excellent agreement for here. Only what happened now was, we didn't get such good agreement as we had before for the early echoes.

And after doing this enough times, the light finally dawned, and it occurred to us that the concept wasn't complete. We weren't dealing with a shooter here and a microphone here. We were dealing with a shooter here all right, but with a microphone that wasn't just here; it was in motion; it was going down the street. If it was a motorcycle in the motorcade, it had to have been in motion; it couldn't just be standing there in the middle of the street; and, in fact, if it was going down the street it was probably going at about the speed of the motorcade, which was supposed to be about 11 miles an hour.

So we started moving the microphone down the street at 11 miles an hour, and for this set of moved positions—now predicting what the echo pattern would be at every position as it comes on down let's say, at what time it would receive each of these echoes.

This is a somewhat more complicated process. It is the same process; it just takes a lot longer because you have to do a lot more calculations.

As soon as we started doing that, it became immediately obvious we could quite easily find positions for the rifle and for the motorcycle, such that the match at both the early and the late echoes was getting increasingly close; and, in fact, once we were there, we were practically in the ballpark. It was a little more work, and we closed on a set of echoes that we could predict that matched the observed impulses on this pattern with an accuracy of approximately one-thousandth of a second.

Mr. CORNWELL. So you found that by moving the microphone at approximately 11 miles an hour, the peaks that you predicted the wave form would look like were correct all the way through from the beginning to the end of particular parts of a tape?

Mr. WEISS. That's correct. That's correct.

Mr. CORNWELL. And each of those peaks fell exactly where you would expect them to fall within one-thousandth of a second?

Mr. WEISS. That is correct. In fact, I have on here numbered some 22 peaks for which I can predict an echo path that will match it to within one-thousandth of a second.

Mr. CORNWELL. Are you able to quantify in some fashion the probability that results from the ability to identify a large number of peaks, as you did, to that degree of precision?

Mr. WEISS. Yes, if you have a fit of some 22 points, you have a terrific fit to begin with. It really is hard to imagine this could be an accident, but you can't express it in those terms. You have to reduce it to some formal number that you can actually show is reasonable.

Now some of these echoes, and particularly the early ones coming from surfaces such as doorways over here and some corners over here, come in small. In fact, they come in below the noise level of impulse peaks in the general area of the recording where this is heard.

There is noise that is heard; there is the motorcycle noises; there is electrical noise; static is coming in. All of this is approximately at the level shown by these dashed lines on this exhibit. Now we didn't want to include anything that might be noise in this comparison; we wanted to deal only with things of which we could be reasonably certain. So we excluded from the consideration anything which was at the noise level itself. If we knew it was below that level, then it was more probably noise than anything else, we excluded it. We wanted to know do those things that excessed this noise level match? Well, if so, how many are there, how many do we expect to find, and how many are matched?

The answer to those three points is that there are a total of some 14 of these greater-than-noise-level peaks observed; there are a total of 10 of them that, in fact, correspond very closely to echo paths that we have been able to predict.

Now our predictions also show that we should have had 12 larger-than-noise-level peaks present; but if you take these numbers and put it in an equation or formula known as the binary correlation formula, you get a number, known as a binary correlation coefficient, of .77, which says, in effect, that this pattern matches, is matched by a corresponding pattern of strong echoes with a coefficient of .77.

If you take that now and you say, well, what is the probability that this is noise, that it is just an accident that these impulses happened to fall into this sequence of spacings, the answer that you get then is that the probability that this is noise is less than 5 percent.

In fact, putting it in a slightly different way, if I may, if I were a betting man, I would say that the odds are 20 to 1 that this is not noise; and I would take 20-to-1 odds.

Mr. CORNWELL. Just to be sure that it is clear, could you have put the microphone at where—I mean, the shooter—at where you ultimately located it and moved the microphone alone and compensated for the error?

Let's suppose you erroneously placed the shooter.

Mr. WEISS. OK. In fact, we performed experiments along that line. Once we knew where everything was, we then tried to adjust positions, and we found that if you move the shooter by perhaps 5 feet on here, you could compensate in a sense for that by moving the initial position of the microphone by about 1 foot, but that when you did that, the compensation was never going to be perfect and, in fact, the range of fit of prediction to observed peak was now somewhat greater than 1 millisecond; it ran to about 1.5 milliseconds.

If you started moving the shooter much more than 5 feet away, you really could not find a position of the microphone that would give any kind of decent fit anymore.

Mr. CORNWELL. So the only two locations in Dealey Plaza which would produce this echo pattern would be the shooter as you have located it on the grassy knoll within the 5 feet circumference?

Mr. WEISS. That is correct.

Mr. CORNWELL. And likewise, a microphone location within about a foot and one-half?

Mr. WEISS. That is correct. We tried numerous positions for the shooter on the grassy knoll area and, of course, many positions for the microphone, and these are the two that yield the tightest and best fit.

Mr. CORNWELL. From that, I take it that you have established to a very high confidence level that it is a shot from some sort of firearm.

Let me ask you if you were able to tell from the wave forms what kind of firearm it was, whether it was supersonic or subsonic, or a rifle or a pistol?

Mr. WEISS. Right. Of course, we have been dealing, up until now, with the question of the sounds of the muzzle blast, which this is identified as, and of all the different echoes that come in later on.

Now if—if this was a rifle firing a supersonic bullet, then we would expect that immediately preceding the sound of the muzzle blast we would find the sound of the shockwave generated by the bullet while it is in flight that always precedes the muzzle blast; and, of course, it precedes it because the bullet is flying at a speed much greater than the speed of sound.

And if we look in the data, we, in fact, do find a very strong impulse preceding the muzzle blast by a reasonable distance that is not so close so that it could not possibly be it, nor is it too far away. It is pretty much in the right position to be considered to be a probable shockwave sound, recorded just before the recording of the direct muzzle blast sound.

You can see similar such events, of course, over there on the recording of the test firings in Dealey Plaza.

Over here I have been pointing previously to the muzzle blast sound arriving. Well, just before it, over here, there is a dark line which, in fact, is the sound of the shockwave that arrives at the microphone before the muzzle blast.

Mr. CORNWELL. So are you telling us that the indications are that it was a supersonic bullet and, therefore, probably a rifle? Mr. WEISS. That is correct.

Mr. CORNWELL. And would you also be able to tell us from the wave form what direction the rifle was pointed, what its target was, and whether or not it hit its target?

Mr. WEISS. Well, to deal with the first question, it is quite difficult to say exactly where the rifle would have to have been pointing. It could have been pointing—now, it could have been pointing approximately in a zone, let's say, this wide, so that it could have included the last position of the limousine at frame 312 of the Zapruder film, but, of course, it could have been firing off elsewhere. It couldn't have been firing, for example, straight up in the air. You would never have observed the shockwave for such a condition, nor for that matter could he have been firing off toward, let's say, the underpass region, because again you would simply not have observed it. There are other positions where in all likelihood you would have observed it, but it would have come in at drastically different times than it does here.

If you figure out what the region is for the rifle to have been aimed at, it does include this sort of a region along here [indicating].

Mr. CORNWELL. And if that's the direction it was aimed, can you tell us how far out the bullet went before it terminated?

Mr. WEISS. No, I cannot, because in order to know that, you have to know both precisely where the rifle was fired—and, as I indicated, you cannot know that really—and you must know exactly what the muzzle velocity of the bullet was, and there is no way of determining that from these data.

Mr. CORNWELL. You said you cannot know precisely where the rifle was fired; you mean at what target?

Mr. WEISS. In what direction it was fired, exactly at what target it was aimed at the time it was fired.

Mr. CORNWELL. And if you were to vary the velocity of the rifle bullet from, say, what you might expect to be a normal rifle velocity, somewhere in the 2,000-foot-per-second range up to something considerably higher, up to the upper 3,000 or perhaps 4,000foot-per-second range, I take it that every time you would vary any assumption like that you would also conclude that there would be a different assumption about where the bullet struck?

Mr. WEISS. That is correct. Even if one makes the assumption that it was aimed directly at the head of the President, you could, for a range of such velocities, assume that it fell short of the target, that it fell at the target, that it went well beyond the target. There is simply no way of knowing.

Mr. CORNWELL. With respect to the last point, Mr. Chairman, I might suggest that we admit as an exhibit, F-673, which is simply a Xerox copy of a 1963 Gun Digest which has the number of velocities of rifles that were available at that time period ranging from everything from just above supersonic speed, all the way up to above 4,000 feet per second.

Chairman Stokes. Has it been marked as an exhibit, counsel? Mr. Cornwell. Yes, it has.

Chairman Stokes. All right. Without objection, it may be entered. [The exhibit follows:] JFK Exhibit F-673



AMM0

WINCHESTER C.F. PISTOL & REVOLVER CARTEIDGES-BALLISTICS AND PRICES

Western cartridges are identical with Winchester loads having the same basic caliber designation, hence the ballistics given will serve for both brends. Western carridges not duplicated by Winchester are listed in baldacc type. The foregoing also holds true for Remington and Paters loads, Peters carridges not duplicated by Remington are listed in baldface type.

574

CAITEDGE	WT.	DULLET TYPE	BARREL LENGTH	MUZZLE VELOCITY FT. PER SEC	MUZZLE Energy I. Ft. Lis.	PENE- TRATION %" SOFT PIN BOARDS AT 15 FT.	PIECE FOR 50	· · · · ·
25 Automotic (Oilproof)	50	E.P.	2"	810	73	3	\$4.20	American—Luropean
256 Winchester Magnum	60	5.7.	8"	2200	650	_	N.A.	Caliber Sudvalents
30 Mouser (7.63m/m) (Ollaroof)	86	E.P.	5%*	14 10	380	11	\$.75	Option Educations
30 Luger (7.65 m/m) (Ollaroof)	93	F.P.	4%*	1220	307	11	5.75	
32 Automatic (Oilproof)	71	F.2.	4	960	145	5	4.80	
32 Smith & Wesson Blank	No	Bellet	<u> </u>	_		_	3.25	and a set of the set o
32 Smith & Wesson Blank (Black powder)	No	Bullat				-	2.25	Kitte Contridges
32 Smith & Wesson (Ollproof) Inside Lubricated	85	Lead	3"	680	87	3	3.45	
32 Smith & Wesson Long (Otherpof) Inside Labricated	98	Lead	4-	705	115	Ā	3.85	Amorican European
32 Short Colt (Oilproof) Grogsed	80	Lub.	4-	745	100	3	3.65	
32 Long Celt (Oilgroof) Inside Lubricated	82	Lub.	4.	755	104	i i	1.85	22 Herent
32 Colt New Police (Ollaroof) Indde Jubricated	08	Land	<u>.</u>	480	100	3	3.85	AT
32-20 Winchester (Olieroof) Inside Lubricated	100	land	6-	1030	271	Ā	5.35	32 Surege
32-20 Winchester (Oligraph)	100	S.P.	Ă*	1030	271	Ă	4.60	25 Remington
257 Manaum Sanar-X (Oilproof) Inside Lubricated	158	Lub.	8%*	1410	695	12	5.45	25-35 Windowster
357 Mannum Matel Plateina Super-X (Ollareat) In-			• /•					7 m /m Manuar 7 m 67
able Lubricated Lond Rearing	158	Mat Pt	836-	1410	695	12	6 70	
9 m/m luner (Forshellum) (Oilproof)	115	FP	4"	1140	332	10	6.00	30-30 Winderter
36 Smith & Wessee Block	No	Bullet	<u> </u>				3 35	7.42 Russian
18 Special Blook	140	Bullet	_	_	_	_	4.60	38-86 Sevinafield
38 Smith & Wasses (Olinesof) Index Jubriceted	145	land	4"	685	151	_	4.50	NOT Lade A
38 Special Super-X (Officeref) Inside Lubrituted	150	Lah	<u>.</u>	1045	377		4.90	
38 Special Metel Piercian Super-X (Olincact) Inside			•		•//	,	4.70	V2 67 VH
Inheirated Land Rearing	150	Mar Pr	A*	1045	377	11	5.85	S m/m Manaldar-
38 Special (Oilamof) Inside Jubricated	158	Lond	Å	855	256		4 60	Schosnayer (M/ 1998)8 x 56
38 Special (Oilpenof) inside tubricated Load Bearing	158	Mat Pt.	4-	855	256	7.5	4.70	8 m/m Mamer
38 Special Mid-Range Match Shorp Corpet Clean Cutting			•		100			
[Oiloroof] imide lubricated	148	l and	A*	770	105	_	4 80	
38 Search Super Match (Olymonth Inside Lubricated	144	land	Ă	855	254	_	4 70	
38 Special Ollessefi Inde Jubristed	200	land	44	730	334	74	4 80	Bland Containing
38 Sheet Cold (Oligonal) Granted	1100	Lub	4-	730	146	1.5	4.05	PISTOI CONTRIGUS
28 Jane Cole (Oliveranti Inside Lubdanted	150	Lub.	4.0	730	174		4.60	·······
38 Colt New Bolice (Olloroof) Inside Lubricated	150	Lood	4.	480	154		4.50	
38 Automotic Sunce Coupled in and the sun is 38 Cab Sunce		LACO	-	000	1.24	-	4.30	American turopout
Automatic Super-speed, for each 30 Cost super-	120			1280	478	10		······································
38 Automatic For all 38 Calt Automatic Metals (Othersoft	130	8.0	414-	1040	212		5.10	25 Automptic 6.25 Browning
390 Auto-alla (Oll-call)	130			040	312	· .	3.10	30 Lugar
38 40 Mindhatter (Okproor)	100	r.r.	374	933	172	3.3	4.70	28 Manuar 7 43 m/m Millania
Al Long Cab (Othersel) laste luberated	100	3.F.	3	770	227	•	7.85	
44 Fank & Warne Frank (Othersel) balds had a	200	100.	414.0	730	23/		3.43	32 Automptic
44 Managem	240	Luc	414-	1470	1160	_	0.13	38 Automatic
44 40 Westerles (Otters 4	240	WD.	714 -	074	400	7	8.10	100 Automatic B as /m Researchen Short
45 Call [Othersel] Inside Jubelanted	200	ar. Innd	514.0	840	420	2	4.17	Marka K
45 Con (Caproor) made cubricated	133	Ledd E p	571-	006	240	2	0.13	(Carro, Karro)
Al Automatic Corpropriation Camponia	190	r.r.		330	307	<u>ں</u>	0.33	V m/m Lager
43 Automatic Super March Glean Cutting	185	M.C.	5	//3	24/	-	0.00	(Furshellum)
45 Aviomane super match (Ollproof) Clean-Cutting	210	Lead	5	710	235		0.80	
45 Automatic Motor Prorcing Super-X (Oilproof)	230	M.C.	2	945	430		7.10	

WINCHESTER	R.F.	CARTRIDGES-BALLISTICS	AND	PRICES

CARTRIDGE	WI. GRS.	BULLET	VELC FT. PI MUZZLE	DCITY BR SEC. 100 YDS.	ENI FT. MUZZLE	IRGY 185. 100 YDS.	MD-RANGE TRAJECTOR 100 YDS.	PISTO BARREL LENGTH	AL V. FT. PER SEC	ALUSTICS M. E. FT. LBS.	PRICE POR 50
22 Short Super Speed	29	к	1125	920	81	54	4.3	6'	1035	69	\$.45
22 Short H.P. Super Speed†	27	ĸ	1155	920	80	51	4.2				. JS
22 Long Super Speedt	29	ĸ	1240	965	99	60	3.8	6"	1095	77	.70
22 Long Rifle Super Speedt	40	ĸ	1335	1045	158	97	3.3	6"	1125	112	
22 Long Rifle H.P. Super Speedt	37	ĸ	1365	1040	149	8.6	3.3	-		•••	.00
22 Long Rifle Shot Super Speed	No.	12		_	_	_					1.50
22 W.R.F. (22 Rem. Spl.) Sup. Sp. Inside Lub.	45	ΞK	1450	1110	210	123	2.7				2.00
22 W.R.F. Magnum H.P.	40	ĸ	2000	1390	355	170	1.6	444"	1550	210	2 40
22 W.R.F. Magnum	40	M.C.	2000	1390	355	170	1.6	44.	1550	210	2 40
22 Short Leader	20		1045		70		5.4		845		44
22 Long Rife Lender	40	ī.	1145	075	116	84	4.0	Å*	850		
22 Long Rife, Improved L. V. F7XS, Smokeless		•					4.0	•	,,,,		
Staveley lead lub	40	1.4	1120	950	111		42				1.04
22 Long Bills Super-Match Mark III	40	Ingel	1120	950			4.2				1 23
22 Long Rife Super-Match Mark IV	40	Land		,,,,				4 X.ª	1040	100	1.25
22 Short Super Match For Butch	20	Land							1000	100	1.23
22 Short Super March (Callery Back)	20	0.4	1045	_	70			0 74	1020		1.00
22 Short Sponerptor (Gallery Pock)	14		1710			-	-			Box of 500	0.50
22 Shorr Sporerpror (Soliery Pack)	15	2	1066	0.00		-				Box of 500	6.30
22 Winchester Automatic Inside Lubricated	43	<u> </u>	1032	A30		80	4.0				2.00

tWax Coated M.C.-Motal Case 1*-Lead, lubricated K-Kopperdad Lub-Lubaloy D*-Divintegrating Courtesy Western-Winchester

Western cartridges are identified with Winchester loads having the same basic coliber designation, hence the balistics given will save for bath brands. Western cartridges not duplicated by Winchester are listed in boldface type. The foregoing also halds the for Remington and Peters loads. Peters cartridges not duplicated by Remington are listed in boldface type.

WINCHESTER C.F. RIFLE CARTRIDGES-BALLISTICS AND PRICES

CARTRIDGE	WL Grs	er Type	VE Mextle	100 yes.	FT, PER SEC 200 yels		Muzzie	ENERGY- 100 yds	-FT. LBS. 200 yds.	300 yda.	MAD-ILA 100 yels	DIGE TRAN	CTORY 300 yd⊾	PRICE For 20
218 Bee Super Saced*	46	N.P.	2860	2160	1610	1200	835	475	265	145	0.7	3.8	11.5	\$4.90
219 Zipper Super Speed	56	N.	3110	2440	1940	1550	1200	740	465	300	0.6	2.9	13.0	3.40
22 Hernet Super Speed*	44	N.F.	2690	2030	1510	1150	740	420	235	135	0.8	4.3	13.0	6.70
220 Swift Soper Speed	46	P.S.P.	4110	3490	2930	2440	1140	1300	520	833	0.3	2.5	7.0	3.15
243 Winchuter Super Speed	1 0	ü :	3500	3080	2720	2410	2180	1690	1320	1030	0.4	1.4	47	4.30
243 Windhuster Super Speed	100	Parry Pt.	3070	2790	2540	2320	2090	365	205	140	1.2	4.3	21.0	4.30
25-20 Winchester (*	86	Lood	1440	1180	1030	940	405	265	200	170	2.6	12.5	32.0	5.35
25-20 Winchester*	117	W.	1460	1180	1030	940	1370	265	200	465	1.0	44	12.3	3.70
250 Savaye Super Speed	87	P.S.P.	3030	2660	2330	2060	1770	1370	1050	820	0.6	2.5	44	4.00
250 Sovege Super Speed	100	S.P.	3200	2460	2140	2190	1780	1560	1210	925	0.5	2.2	3 5 -	4.45
257 Roberts Super Speed	100	S.Lbe.	2900	2540	2210	1920	1870	1430	1080	820	0.6	27	7.0	4.45
257 Roberts Super-X	100	5	3700	3260	2880	2550	3040	2360	1840	1440	ŭ	1.6	4.2	5.85
264 Winchester Megmin	140	Farmer Pr	3200	2940	2700	2480	3180	2690	2270	1910	0.5	2.0	4.7	5.45
270 Windhaster Super Speed	130	STEm.	3480	2850	2590	2320	2840	2340	1920	1550	0.5	żī	13	4.75
270 Winchester Super Speed	150	Person Pt.	2900	2620	2380	2160	2800	2290	1890	1550	0.4	2.5	4.3	4.75
7x57 m/m Massar Super Speed	150	1. A	2410	2020	1700	1430	1930	1360	960	680	0.9	4.2	11.0	3.75
30-30 Winchester Super Speed	150	freer Pr	2410	2020	1700	1430	1930	1360	960	680	0.2	42	11.0	3.78
30-30 Windowster Super Speed	170	ST.Ess.	2220	1890	1630	1410	1860	1350	1000	750	1.2	4.6	12.5	3,75
30-30 Winduster Seper Speed	170	14.	2220	1890	1430	1410	1860	1350	1000	750	1.2	44	12.5	3.78
30 Remington Super Speed	110	S.F.	3340	2810	2340	1920	2730	1930	1340	900	à.s	2.2	4.0	4.75
308 Winchester Super Speed	123	P.S.P.	3100	2740	2430	2160	2670	2080	1640	1300	0.5	2.3 .	5.9	4.78
308 Winchester Super Speed	150	S.Lfne.	2860	2570	2300	2050	2730	2200	1760	1400	0.6	2.6	4.3	4.75
308 Winchester Super Speed	180	Power Pt	2610	2250	1940	1680	2720	2020	1 500	1130	0.7	- 14		4.73
308 Winchester Super Speed	200	S.T.Exp.	2450	2210	1980	1770	2670	2170	1750	1400	0.8	3.6	7.9	4.75
30-40 Krop Super Speed	180	Power Pi	2470	2120	1830	1590	2440	2020	1340	1010	0.8	3.5		4.75
30-40 Krog Super Speed	220	S.T.Exp.	2200	1990	1800	1630	2360	1930	1580	1300	1.0	44	11.0	4.78
30-06 Springfield Super Speed	. 110	S.P.	3370	2830	2350	1970	2770	1960	1350	1340	0.5	2.2	5.6	4.75
30-06 Springfield Super Speed	150	Power Pr	2970	2620	2300	2010	2930	2280	1760	1340	0.6	2.5		4.75
30-D6 Springfield Super Speed	150	ST.Ess.	2970	2670	2400	2130	2930	2370	1410	1210	0.4	2.4	1	4.78
30-06 Springfield Super Speed	180	S.I.Esp.	2700	2470	2250	2040	2910	2440	2020	1660	<u>بت</u> ة .	2.9	7.0	4.75
30-06 Springfield Wimbledon Cup	. 180	FPAL	2700	2520	2350	2190	2910	2540	2200	1900	0.6	2.8	.	6.03
30-06 Springfield Super Speed	220	Power P	2410	2120	1870	1670	2830	2190	1710	1360	0.0	3.2	2.4	4.75
30-06 Springfield Super-Speed	. 220	S.T.Exp.	2410	2180	1980	1790	2830	2320	1410	1080	0.0	5	6.0	4.40
300 Savage Super Speed.	130	S.T.Exp.	2670	2390	2130	1890	2370	1900	1510	1190	0.7	3.0	.7.4	4.60
300 Savage Super Speed	. 190	STree	2370	2040	1760	1320	2240	1860	1530	1250	0.9	37	9.2	4.40
300 H. & H. Magnum Super Speed.	150	S.I.Emp.	3190	2870	2580	2300	3390	2740	2220	1760	0.5	2.1	\$2	4.00
300 H. & H. Magnus Super Speed	. 180	STERS.	2420	2370	2150	1940	3350	2740	2260	1840	0.7	រ៍រំ	<u> </u>	6.00
303 Savage Super Speed.	190	S.T.Eam.	1980	1680	1440	1250	1630	1190	875	660	13	4.2	15.5	4.05
303 British Super Speed	215	S.P.	2140	1900	1660	1460	2270	1720	1310	1020	1.1	4.9	12.3	4.75
32-20 Windowster High Valacity Super Speed*.	80	N.P.	2100	1430	1090	950	780	365	210	160	1.5		24.5	7,10
32-20 Windhester (Ollarcoff)*	100	\$.7,	1290	1060	940	840	370	250	195	155	ü	13.5	38.0	6.60
32 Windhaster Special Super Speed	. 170	Pewer P	2280	1870	1560	1330	1960	1320	920	665	1.0	44	13.0	3.85
32 Remington Super Speed	170	S.T.Amp.	2120	1760	1460	1220	1700	1170	805	560	Ű.	5.5	14.5	3.81
32-40 Winchester	. 165	P.S.	1440	1250	1100	1030	2390	1740	1310	1000	2.4	11.0	11.5	4.71
338 Winchester Megnus	200	Person P	3000	2690	2410	2170	4000	3210	2580	2090	0.5	2.4	4.0	6.30
338 Winchester Mognum	. 250	\$1.	2700	2430	2180	1940	4050	3280	2640	2090	0.7	10	13	4.30
348 Winchester Super Speed	1,50	S.T.Exp.	2890	2460	2060	1710	2780	2020	1410	975	0.6	2.9	7.9	5.65
348 Winchester Super Speed	. 200	S.T.Eap.	2530	2220	1940	1682	2840	2190	1530	1250	0.9	14	113	5.63
35 Remington Super Speed	200	Perver P	2100	1710	1390	1160	1950	1300	860	605	1.2	6.0	14.5	4.30
35 Remington Super Speed	200	S.T.Exp.	2100	1710	1390	1160	1950	1290	805	603 520	1.2	8.0 7.8	21.5	4.30
351 Winchester Self-Looding (Oilpreef)*	180	£2.	1850	1560	1310	1140	1370	975	685	520	1.5	7.8	21.5	0.05
358 Winchester Super-Speed	200	5.T.	2530	2210	1910	1640	2840	2160	1610	1190	0.0	3.6	11.0	4,91
375 H. & H. Mognum Super Speed	270	Power P	. 2740	2460	2210	1990	4500	3620	2920	2370	07	2.9	7.1	6.50
375 H. & H. Magness Super Speed	. 300	S.T.Exp.	2550	2280	2040	1830	4330	3460	2770	2230	0.7	3.3	11	e.50 6,50
38-40 Winchester (Oliproof)*	180	S.P.	1330	1070	960	850	705	455	370	290	3.2	13.0	34.5	7.8
38-55 Winchester	. 255	5.P. H 5.P	1320	1350	1050	1000	985	760	625	365	2.9	13.0	24.0	3.35
44-40 Winchester (Oilproof)*	200	S.P.	1310	1050	940	830	760	490	390	305	3.3	13.0	36.5	1.2
45-70 Government. 458 Winchester Mossum Super Spreed	405	5.P. F.Z.	1320	1160	1050	1520	13/0	4050	3210	2570	1.1	4,8	12	12.1
458 Winchester Magnum Super Speed	\$10	S.P.	2130	1840	1600	1400	5140	3830	2900	2220	1.1	5,1	13.5	7.95
													_	<u> </u>

Thide Worksted K.P.-Hollow Point O.P.E.-Open Point Expanding S.P.-Soft Point P.S.P.-Fointed Soft Point F.P.-Full Potch S.T.-Silvertip M.C.R.T.-Matal Case Boot Tail 950 per kas F.P.R.T.-Hull Patch Boot Tail H.C.P.-Halao Copper Point Courtley Western-Winchster

REMINGTON C.F. RIFLE CARTRIDGES-BALLISTICS AND PRICES

~

CARTRIDGE	Wi. Gr	BULLET 1. Style	VELC Mexate	100 yds.	PER SEC 200 yds.	OND 300 yds.	EN Muzzle	ERGY_PO 100 yds.	OT POUN 200 yds.	DS 300 yds.	MID-RAP	GE TRAJE	CTORY 300 yds.	PRICE
218 Bee Hi-Speed*	46	Mush.	2860	2160	1610	1200	835	475	265	145	0.7	3.0	11.5	
219 Zipper Hi-Speed	56	Mush.	3110	2440	1940	1550	1200	740	465	300	0.6	2.9	8.3	3.60
22 Horaet Hi-Speed*		S.P.	2490	2030	1510	1150	720	410	230	130	0.8	4.3	13.0	6.70
220 Swift Hi-Speed	41	5.P. 5.P.	4110	3490	2930	2440	1800	1300	915	635	0.3	14	3.6	3.85
222 Remington HI-Speed		M.C.	3200	2650	2170	1750	1140	780	520	340	0.5	2.5	7.0	3.15
222 Remington Mognum Hi-Speed 243 Winchester Hi-Speed	80	S.P. Pt.S.P.	3300	2800	2340	1930	1330	955	670	455	0.5	2.3	4.1	3.45
243 Winchester HI-Speed	. 100	PI.S.P.C.L.	3070	2790	2540	2320	2090	1730	1430	1190	0.5	2.2	\$.s	4.30
244 Remington 244 Remington	∷ #3	Phd.S.P. Phd.S.P.	3300	2850	2660	2290	2040	1570	1180	875	0.4	1.9	4.9	4.30
244 Remington	90	Br.P.	3200	2850	2530	2230	2050	1630	1280	995	0.5	2.i	5.5	4.30
25-20 Winchester*	. 86	Lead	1440	1180	1030	940	405	265	205	140	2.6	12.5	21.0	6.25
25-20 Winchester*	86	S.P.	1440	1180	1030	940	405	265	200	170	2.6	12.5	32.0	5.90
250 Savage Hi-Speed	100	PId.S.P.C.L	2820	2500	2210	1940	1740	1370	1050	820	0.6 0.6	2.5	4.4	4.00
250 Savage Hi-Speed	100	S.P.C.L	2820	2350	1970	1670	1760	1220	860	620	0.6	3.1	8.4	4.00
25-35 Winchester Express	🗆 iiž	S.P.C.L.	2300	1910	1600	1340	1370	945	665	465	1.0	4.6	12.0	3.70
257 Roberts Hi-Speed	100	Pid.S.P.C.L.	2900	2580	2280	2000	1870	1480	1150	885	0.6	17	6.7	4.45
264 Winchester Magnum	100	Ptd.S.P.C.L.	3700	3260	2880	2550	3040	2360	1840	1440	0.4	1.6	4.2	4,45
264 Winchester Magnum 270 Winchester Hi-Speed	140	Pid.S.P.C.L. Ptd.S.P.	3200	2940	2700	2460	3180	2690	2270	1910	0.5	2.1	4.9	5.85
270 Winchester Hi-Speed	. 130	Prd.S.P.C.L	3140	2850	2580	2320	2840	2340	1920	1550	0.5	2.1	5.3	4.75
270 Winchester Hi-Speed	130	5.P.C.L.	3140	2880	2630	2400	2840	2390	1990	1660	0.5	2.1	5.1	4.75
280 Remington	100	Br.P.	3570	3160	2770	2420	2830	2220	1700	1 300	.4	1.8	4.5	4.75
280 Remington	. 150	Pid.S.P.C.L.	2890	2660	2390	2320	2820	2300	1860	1630	5	2.1	5.3	4.73
280 Remington	165	S.P.C.L.	2820	2510	2220	1970	2910	2310	1810	1420	Ā	2.8	7.2	4.75
7mm Remington Magnum	175	5.P.C.L.	3260	3040 2650	2820 2310	2600	3540	3140	2760	2410	.5	1.8	47	5.85
30-30 Winchester Express	150	S.P.C.L	2410	1960	1620	1360	1930	1280	875	615	0.9	4.5	12.5	3.75
30-30 Winchester Express	170	M.C.L.	2220	1890	1630	1410	1840	1240	1000	250	1.0	5.0	13.0	3.75
30-30 Winchester Express	. 170	S.P.C.L.	2220	1890	1630	1410	1860	1350	1000	750	1.2	4.6	12.5	3.75
30 Remington High Velocity	170	LB.S.P.	2220	1890	1630	1410	1860	1350	1000	750	1.2	4.6	12.5	3.75
30-40 Krog Hi-Speed	180	S.P.C.L.	2470	2120	1830	1 590	2440	1790	1340	1010	0.8	3.8	9.9	4.75
30-40 Krog High Velocity	220	1.8.H.P.	2200	1930	1700	1510	2360	1820	1410	1110	0,8	3.5	120	4.75
30-40 Krag Express	220	S.P.C.L.	2200	1930	1700	1510	2360	1820	1410	1110	1.0	4.6	12.0	4.75
30-06 Springfield Hi-Speed	150	Br.P.	2970	2710	2470	2240	2930	2110	2030	1670	0.4	2.)	5.6	4.75
30-06 Springfield Hi-Speed	. 150	Prd.S.P.C.L.	2970	2670	2400	2130	2930	2370	1920	1510	0.4	2.4	6.1	4.75
30-06 Springfield Hi-Speed	180	S.P.C.L.	2700	2330	2010	1740	2910	2190	1610	1340	07	2.2	5.6	4.75
30-06 Springfield Hi-Speed	180	Pid.S.P.C.L.	2700	2470	2250	2040	2910	2440	2020	1660	07	2.9	7.0	4.75
30-06 Springfield Palma Match	180	M.C.T.H.	2700	2520	2350	2190	2910	2540	2080	1900	0.6	2.9	6.9	4.75
30-06 Springfield Express	. 220	MCL	2410	2120	1870	1670	2830	2190	1710	1360	0.8	3.9	9.8	4.75
300 H. & H. Magnum Hi-Speed	180	Ptd.S.P.C.L.	2920	2670	2440	2220	3400	2850	2380	1970	0.6	2.4	5.9	4.73
300 H. & H. Magnum Match	180	M.C.T.H.	2920	2740	2550	2360	3400	3000	2600	2240	0.6	2.4	57	7.45
300 Savage Hi-Speed	150	S.P.C.L.	2670	2270	1930	1660	2370	1710	1240	915	07	3.3	9.3	4.60
300 Savage Hi-Speed	150	Prd.S.P.C.L	2670	2410 2390	2170	1950	2370	1930	1570	1270	07	3.0	7.5	4.60
300 Savage Express	. 180	S.P.C.L.	2370	2040	1760	1520	2240	1660	1240	920	0.9	4.1	10.5	4.60
303 British Express	215	S.P.	23/0	1900	1660	1770	2240	1860	1530	1250	0.9	37	9.2	4.60
303 Savege High Velocity	. 180	LB.H.P.	2140	1810	1550	1340	1630	1310	960	715	iii -	5.4	14.0	4.05
308 Win. Hi-Speed	110	5.P.C.L. Ptd.5.P.	3340	2610	2340	1340	1830	1310	960	715	1.1	5.4	14.0	4.05
308 Win, Hi-Speed	. 150	Pid.S.P.C.L.	2860	2570	2300	2050	2730	2200	1760	1400	0.6	2.6	6.5	4.75
32 Remington Express	170	5.P.C.L.	2220	1890	1610	1400	1860	1350	975	1540	0.8	3.1	7.4	4.75
32 Winchester Special Express	. 170	M.C.L.	2280	1920	1630	1410	1960	1390	1000	750	1.0	4.8	12.5	3.85
32-20 Winchester Hi-Speed*	80	Mush.	2100	1430	1090	950	780	365	210	750	1.0	4.8	12,5	3.85
32-20 Winchester*	100	Lead	1290	1060	940	840	370	250	195	155	3.3	15.5	38.0	5.35
32-40 Winchester	165	S.P.	1440	1250	1100	1030	760	570	445	390	3.3	15.5	38.0	6.60
348 Winchester Hi-Speed	150	S.P.	2890	2360	1860	1420	2780	1850	1150	670	0.6	3.2	9.0	5.45
348 Winchester Express	200	S.P.C.L.	2530	2140	1820	1570	2840	2030	1470	1090	0.8	3.8	10.0	5.45
35 Remington Hi-Speed	. 150	PId.S.P.C.L.	2400	1960	1580	1280	1920	1280	835	545	0.9	4.6	13.0	4.30
35 Remington Express	200	S.P.C.L.	2210	1830	1540	1310	2170	1490	1050	760	13	5.2	14.0	4.30
351 Winchester Self-Loading*	180	S.P.	1850	1560	1310	1140	1370	975	685	520	1.5	7.8	21.5	8.05
375 H. & H. Megnum	270	S.P.	2740	2460	2210	1990	4500	3620	2920	2370	0.7	2.9	21.5	8.05
375 H. & H. Mognum	300	M.C. S.P.	2550	2280	2040	1830	4330	3460	2770	2230	0.7	3.6	9.3	6.50
38-55 Winchester	255	S.P.	1320	1160	1050	1000	985	760	625	565	3.2	15.0	36.5	7.85
44 Magnum Corbine*	240	S.P. 5 P	1850	1450	1150		1820	1120	705		1.6	8.4		8.30
45-70 Government	405	S.P.	1320	1160	1050	990	1570	1210	990	805	3.3	13.0	36.5	8.25
458 Winchester Magnum	. 510	5.P.	2130	1840	1600	1400	5140	3830	2900	2220	Ξí.	5.1	13.5	7.95
7 mm. Mouser Express	175	S.P.	2490	2170	1900	1680	2410	1830	1400	1100	0.8	4.8	12.0	12.15
8 mm. Mavser Hi-Speed. 8 mm. Lebel Hi-Speed	. 170	S.P.C.L. S.P.	2570	2140	1790	1520	2490	1730	1210	870	0.8	3.9	10.5	4.75
*50 * * * *								1730		1090	0.7	3,4		3.40
So per edit Multi-Multiroom 3.P3	iont Point ł	pr.r.—Bronze I.P.—Hollow Poin	701117 C.L. 17 LB.—H	-Core-Lok mer Beited	r M.C P.P.Ex	—Metal Ca p.—Protect	sed T.) led Point	1.—Topere Exponding	d Heel	M.C.LN	Aushroom	Core-Lokt	Prd.—i	Pointed

REMENSION R.F. CARTRIDGES-BALLISTICS AND PRICES

1250 per Ben	CARTRIDGE "28 per Box	Maight Grains	LET Sryle	VELOCITY—FEI Muzzie	ET PER SECOND 100 Yords	ENERGY-F	DOT POUNDS 100 Yards	M.R. TRAJECTORY Inches—100 Yds.	PRICE For 50
REMINGTON "	9-SPERD"								Service States
22 Short			Lead	1125	920	81	54	4.3	\$.45
22 Short		27	Notion Point	1155	920	80	51	4.2	.75
22 Short Hi-See	ad Rachat ^a	15		1710	_	97	-		.37
22 Loon		29	Lead	1240	965	99	60	3.8	.70
22 Long Bille		40	Lond	1335	1045	158	97	3.3	.80
22 Long Bife		36	Hollow Point	1365	1040	149	86	3.3	.90
22 W (-man Second	45	Lead	1450	1110	210	123	2.7	2.00
SEMINGTON-	TANDARD VRIOCITY								
22 Short		20	land	1045	610	70	_	_	.45
22 Shart Galler	Succession Constituted and	79	land	1045		70	_	_	3.25
12 Short Smaller		29	land	1045	-	70	_	-	.45
22 Short Man	ad Impound Souther, I are?			1710	_	97	_	-	3.25
22 Joon Bills	and and the state of the state	40	Lead	1145	975	116	84	4.0	.80
22 Long Rine			land	1033	930	iii	- 14	4.4	3.00
AT THE POTENT	BREAL MATCH CARTER								
22 1	regards monifor Course	40	l and	1145	975	116	24	4.0	1.25
11 Long Kine-			6464	1145					

REMINGTON SHOT SHELLS

FEDERAL SHOT SHELLS

Gauge and Brand	Longth Shell Inc.	Powder Equiv. Drams	Shot	Size Shat	RETAIL P ZONES 1-2-3-4	ER BOX ZONE S	load No.	Longth Shail Ins.	Gauge	Powder Drams Equiv,	Ounces Shot	SHOT SIZES Standard Skat	BETAR PI ZONES 1-2-3-4	ER BOX ZONE S
EXTRA LONG RANG	-Fiel	-Top C	rimp				HI-POWEI	R Brond	4					
10 Go. Remington Exp. 12 Go. Remington Exp.		37	12	88, 2, 4, 5, 6, 7%	3.50	3.55	HP127		12	3%	12	2, 4, 5, 4, 7, 9	\$3.50	3.25
12 Ga. Remington "SP		5 3%	116	88, 2, 4, 5, 6, 742, 9	3.65	3.70	HP164.		16	334	j%	2, 4, 5, 6, 7%	3.25	3.30
"16 Go. Remington "5/"			102	2, 4, 5, 6, 7%	3.20	3.25	HP203		20	234	<u>،</u>	2, 4, 5, 6, 75, 9	3.05	3,10
*16 Go. Remington "SP	23	i 34	i¥i.	2, 4, 5, 6, 7%	3.25	3.30	HP412.		410	Mox	- %	4, 5, 6, 7%	2.35	2.40
*20 Go, Remington "SP 28 Go, Remington Fra	·	32	່ " 🖌	2, 4, 5, 6, 7%	3.05	3.20	HP413	3	410	Mox	*	4, 5, 6, 7½	2.75	2.80
410 Ga. Remington Exp.			<u> </u>	4, 5, 6, 7%, 9	2.35	2.40	MAGNUM	LOAS	bs					
410 Go. Remington Exp.	3		*	4, 5, 6, 795, 9	2.75	2.80	HP130.		12	4	12	2, 4, 5, 6	4.00	4.05
MAGNUM LOADS			•			7 90	HP129	3	12	- 22	12	B. 2. 4. 5. 6	4.40	4.45
10 Ge. Remington Exp. 12 Ge. Remington Exp.			14	2. 4. 6	4.00	4.05	HP165.		16	31/2	1%	2, 4, 6	3.50	3.55
12 Go. Remington "SP		4 4	12	88, 2, 4, 5, 6	4.15	4.20	HP205		20	344	12	2, 4, 6, 79	3.20	3.25
12 Go, Remington Exp. 12 Go, Remington Exp.		- 12	12	BB, 2, 4 BB, 7, 4	4,73	4.80	HP282		28	2%	i^	6, 7 12, 8	3.40	3.45
12 Ga. Remington Exp.		- 74	i93	88, 2, 4, 5, 6	4.40	4.45	BUCKSHO		had Slu					
12 Go, Remington SP		. 49	1%	88, 2, 4, 5, 6	4.55	4.60	HP131.		12	Sup-Mog		00 Buck-15 Pallets	5.45	5.50
*10 Go. Remington "SP	24	1 1 1	11%	2. 4. 6. 7%	3.20	3,25	HP130		12	Mog		00 Buck-12 Pollets	475	4.60
*20 Ga. Remington "SP	" 3 `	31,4	11/4	2, 4, 6, 7%	3.55	3.60	HP127		12	Max		0 Beck-12 Pollets	4.20	4.25
BUCKSHOT-Roll Cris	mp						HP127.		12	Max		1 Buck 16 Pollots	4.20	4.25
12 Ga. Remington Mag	2 ¥	4		00 Buck-12 Pallats	4.75	4.80	HP127		12	Max		4 Beck-27 Pellets 1 Barb-12 Pallets	4.20	4.25
12 Go. Remington Arr		4%		00 Buck	5,45	5.50	HP203	24	żŏ	Mox		3 Buck-20 Pollets	4.20	4.25
12 Ga. Remington "SP	3	4%	1	00 Buck-15 Pullets	5.60	5.65	H#127		12	Max	١,	Rifled Slug	5.25	5.30
12 Ga. Remington "SP 12 Ga. Remington Fra		- 32		00 Buck - 9 Pallets	4,20	4.25	HP203.	22	20	Max	g	Rifled Sive	4.80	4.85
12 Ga. Remington "SP		4 3 %		00 Buck- 9 Pollets	4.35	4.40	HP412	29/2	410	Max	1/3	Rifled Slug	4,50	4.55
12 Go. Remington Exp.		(<u>34</u>		O Buck-12 Pallots	4,20	4.25	MONARK	Brand	ı i					
12 Go. Remington Exp		37		1 Buck-16 Pollets	4.20	4.25	M120		12	3	1.	4, 5, 6, 8	2.75	2.80
12 Ga. Remington "SP	···. 21	4 33		1 Buck-16 Pallets	4.35	4.40	M121		12	3.,	12	4, 5, 6, 8, 9	2.90	2.93
12 Go. Remington Exp 12 Go. Remington "SP		12		4 Buck	4.35	4.40	M124	22	12	3%	12	7 1/2. 8	1.10	2.15
16 Go. Rentington "SP		6 3		1 Buck-12 Pallets	4.20	4.25	M161		16	2%	1.	4, 5, 6, 8, 9	2.40	2.65
16 Go. Reminister Exp		3		1 Buck-12 Pellets	4.20	4.25	M162		16	272	12	4, 5, 6, 79, 8, 9	2.45	2.50
PIELED SILIG Boll C		4.7		5 BULL - 10 T			M202		2ŏ	21%	17	4 5 6 714 8 9	2.45	2,70
12 Ga. Remington Exp		6 3%	1	Rifled Slug	5.25	5.30	OPEN LO	ADS						
12 Ga. Remington "SP	72	¥ 3¥	i ۱	Rifled Slug	5,40	5.45	M125		12	3	1%	8	3.05	3.10
16 Go. Remington "SP		2 3 4	. 2	Riffed Slug	3:00	4.85	M160		16	2%	1	1	2.75	7,80
28 Go. Remington Exp		i 2%	У У	Rifled Slug	4.90	4.95	M200		N	2 74	71	•	2.00	
410 Ga. Remington Exp		i	· ·/#	Rifled Slug	4,50	4.55	TARGET	LOADS	·					
FIELD LOADS-Flot-T	lop Cri	mp _					MI19		12	2%	12	77	2.90	2,95
12 Go. Shur Shor	23	2 3	14	4.5.6.8.9	2.90	2.95	\$166		16	21/2	- i	8, 9	2.60	2.65
12 Ga. Shur Shat		6 3%	19	4, 5, 6, 8	2.95	3.00	\$206		20	2%	2	. ,	243	3,20
12 Go, Shur Shot		34	1/4	772. B	2 60	2 45	\$412	2%	410	Mox	я.	é	2.35	2.40
16 Ga. Shur Shot		2 <u>2 %</u>	i 1/6	4, 6, 8	2.75	2,80	\$413	3	410	Mox	*	9	2.75	2,80
20 Ga. Shur Shot		6 2 <u>1</u> /2	, %	4, 5, 6, 8, 9	2.45	2.50								
20 00. 349 346		• • • •		-, •, •	2.05						-	+		
12 Go Shur Shot	21	2 .	114		3.05	3.10			\sim	<	1			
16 Ga. Shur Shat	25	29	i. 1	i	2.75	2.80					100			
20 Ga. Shur Shot		6 2%	. %	8	2.60	2.65				1				
TARGET LOADS-FL	nt Top	Crimp								- L.M	DAL	1.2		
12 Ga, Shur Shot 12 Ga, Shur Shot		2 24	12	7%, 8, 9 New Load 7%, 8 New Load	2.90	2.95			1	Mos				
16 Ga. Shur Shot		4 2Y		9	2.60	2.65				5	ARK			
20 Ga. Shur Shot		6 2 <u>1</u> /	2	7	2.45	2.50			1			S' AL		
410 Ga. Remington Exp		5	. <i>7</i>	÷	2.35	2.40				I)P	-	9 3 5		
410 Go. Remington Exp			. X	9	2.75	2.80				∽ s	6. 1	2 X X		
	•								-	sh.	101 8	532		
"Paper shells in these I	loads a	vellabia	enly w	hilo stock løsts.							7/ ₃ 8	512		

Courtesy Remington Arms Co.

AMM0

6,5 x 55

BALLISTIC DATA FOR WEATHERBY MAGNUM CALIBERS

,

REMINGTON C.F. PISTOL AND REVOLVER CARTRIDGES-BALLISTICS AND PRICES

	lets		. V	(decity		Peet-	Pound	s of En		T.	ejecte	• • •
Wolght	Туре	Muzzia	100 yels.	200 yele,	300 ydt.	Mezzie	100 yele.	200 yels.	-	300 745.	300 yds.	400 yele.
			257	Weath	arby 3	kagnum,	Price,	\$6.60				
87	Set	1930	3575	3195	2850	2984	2471	1974	1569	8.5	2,9	6,5
100	Set IN	3700	3400	3100	2810	3040	2562	2129	1753	2	3.3	7.5
•••												u
			270	Weath	orby A	lognum;	Price, 3	6,60				
100	بعد	3900	3545	3180	2820	3378	2794	2241	1766	•••	2.7	6.5
130	201	3450	3183	2920	2000	1429	2731	2401	20/5	10	3.6	. 7.1
130	E.B.	3240	2903	2390	3300	3489	2820	2234	1761	12	3.0	10.1
1.30	apr	3240	3010	2000	2000		3018	1011	****		3.9	e.3
			7 mm	Weeth	arby S	Angrum,	Price.	\$6.60				
139	5?	3465	3195	2930	268.	3709	3153	2649	2233	1.0	3.3	7.1
154	Sel	3260	3035	2820	260	3627	3160	2720	2330	1.2	3.8	8.3
175	8N	3067	2790	2500	2270	3662	3024	2429	2002	1.4	5.0	11.5
			300	Weath	arby A	logman,	Price, 3	\$7.70				
110	5?	4050	3625	3230	283	4007	3218	2543	1970	87	27	6.6
150	Set	3630	3360	3095	28.54	4389	3753	3193	2704	4.4	3.0	67
180	SpP	3330	3115	2895	268	5 4477	3882	3361	2892	1.0	3.9	7.5
220	RH .	3000	2740	2475	2234	9 4400	3667	3005	2429	1.5	4.9	11.5
			375	Weath	arlay A	hogmum,	Price, i	\$8.80				
270	R14	2940	2680	2420	2175	5181	4309	3510	2835	1.9	5.5	11.1
300	IN .	2800	2510	2270	2025	5 5223	4197	3432	2745	2.3	6.4	12.5
			378	Weath	wby N	Legnum, I	Price, S	15.00				
270	RN .	3212	2910	2650	239	6201	5074	4209	3424	1.4	4.2	2.9
300	2N	2022	2725	2460	2200	6075	4965	4032	3222	1.5	47	11.0
			460	Wantha	ria v M		frice. S	17.50				
500	814	2725	2480	2240	202	5 8245	A#30	5570	4550	20	70	13.3

	84,	ALET	Velocity	Muzzie		
CARTIEDGE	Gr.	Style	Feet per Second	Energy Ft. Lbs.	Berrei Inches	PRICE Per 50
Jet	40	S.P.	2460	535	4%	54.50
(6.35 mm.) Autometic	50	M.C.	810	73	2	4.20
(7.65 mm.) Luger	93	M.C.	1220	307	4%	\$75
(7.63 mm.) Mauser Automatic.	85	M.C.	1410	375	\$15	3.75
Short Colt	80	Load	795	112	- 4	3.45
Long Colt	80	Load	790	111	4	3.85
Colt New Police	100	Lead	785	137	4	3.85
(7.65 mm.) Automatic Pistal	71	M.C.	960	145	4	4.80
Smith & Wesson	86	Lead	705	97	3	3.65
Smith & Wessen Long	98	Lood	780	132	4	3.85
7 Magnum Hi-Speed	158	M.P.	1430	717	6%	4.20
7 Magnum Hi-Speed	158	Leed	1430	717	8%	5.45
am. Lugar	124	M.C.	1120	345	4	4.00
Smith & Wesson	146	Lead	730	173	4	4.50
Special.	158	Lood	855	256		4.40
Special	200	Lead	730	236		4.80
Special.	158	M.P.	855	256	6	\$70
Special Wed Cutter Targetmester	148	Lead	770	195		4 80
Special Metal Penetrating Hi-Way						
Master.	110	Speciel	1330	433	5	5.85
Special Hi-Speed	158	Lead	1085	413	š	5.10
Colt New Police.	150	Lead	680	154	-	4 50
Short Colt	125	Lond	760	140	Ā	4.05
Long Colt	150	Lond	770	197		4 50
Super Automatic Hi-Speed	130	M.C.	1275	449		\$10
Automatic	130	M C	1040	312	44	
O Automotic	0.5	AC	955	192	- 22	
loss Cat	105	land	730	211	-77	
Smith & Wanna Sparint	246	Land	755		44	
Reminaton Madaum Mi-Sanad	240	14.6.6	1470	11.00	10	
Reminator Magnum	240	5.0.0.	1470	1120	112	
Calt	250	l and		405	- 72	111
Automotio	210			140		712
Automatic Wood Cutter Incomparing	1.85		775	245		4.00
Automatic Rim	220	in and				7.77
			-03		- 72	e.33

"Mid-range, with telescope sights. Bullets-SoP; Spire Point; IN; Round

4

		n(Ð[h	IL			al	lis	H iti	68)		
1mm		Buildet	v.	locity,	feet per s	+C.		Energy, F	oot pour	ds	of	Max. heig sjectory,	ahl inches
NO.	Contriáge	Weight grs.	Muzzla	V 100 yele	200 741	300 yds.	E Muzzie	100 yds	200 yd	.300 yds.	Tr. 100 yets.	Tr. 200 yds.	Tr. 300 yds.
12	.220 Swift Soft point pointed Full jockst semi pointed 202 Rem	50 50	411 411	3611 3660	37.33 24150	268) 2295	1877 1877	1448 1329	1090 902	779 585	г. г.	.) 9	3.0 3.7
3	Soft point pointed Full jacket semi painted 243 Wile	50 50	3200 3200	2640 2610	2176 2080	1750 1630	1137	786 756	523 480	340 295	å	2.0 2.1	6.2 7.1
5 ទោ 148	Mollow point Soft point pointed Full jocket sami pointed	75 100 100	3500 3070 3070	3070 2790 2790	2660 2540 2540	2290 2320 2320	2041 2093 2093	1570 1729 1729	1179 1433 1433	873 1195 1195	هـ ۱.	1.4 1.8 1.6	4.1 5.0 5.0
- 1	.244 Rem. Hollow point Soft point pointed	75 90	3500 3200	3070 2850	2660 2530	2290 2230	2041 2047	1570 1624	1179 1279	873 994	3	1.4 1.6	4.] 49
9 10	.250 Savage Soft point pointed Soft point pointed Soft point pointed	100 100 120	3032 2022 2645	2685 2514 2405	2357 2223 2177	2054 1956 1964	1776 1769 1865	1393 1404 1542	1074 1098 1263	815 850 1028	۹ ۱.	1.9 2.2 2.5	5.8 6.6 7.0
11	257 Roberts Soft point pointed Soft point pointed	100 120	2900 2645	2508 2405	2291 2177	2020 1964	1868 1865	1488 1542	1166 1263	906 1028	1	2.1 2.5	6.2 7.0
13 14	53 Jap. Saft point pointed boettail Soft point round pose 4.5 w 54 MS	139 156	2428 2047	2290 1971	2130 1692	1990 1529	1820 1481	1405 1213	1401 992	1223 810	1	2.8 4.4	77 11.9
15 14 160 17 164	Soft point pointed Soft point pointed boattail Full jocket boattail Soft point round nose Full jocket round nose	77 139 139 139 156	3117 2580 2580 2461 2461	2731 2420 2420 2240 2240	2369 2270 2270 2033 2033	2036 2120 2120 1840	1662 2056 2056 2098 2098	1274 1808 1805 1738 1738	960 1591 1591 1432 1432	710 1388 1388 1173 1173	4444	1.9 7.4 2.4 3.0 3.0	5.6 6.5 6.5 8.2 9.2
105 19 20 21	6,5 x 55 Soft point pointed Full jacket pointed Soft point pointed bosttail Full jacket besttail	77 93 139	3120 3150 2789 2789	2730 2705 2630 2630	2370 2292 2470 2470	2040 1920 2320 2320	1664 2050 2402 2402	1275 1512 2136 2136	961 1085 1883	712 762 1662 1667	م م 1.	1.9 1.9 2.0	5.6 4.0 5.6
22	Soft point round nose Full jacket round nose 279 Win.	156 156	2493 3493	2271 2271	2062 2062	1867 1867	2153 2153	1787	1473	1208 1208	د	2.9	79 79
24 25 26 27 70 161	Soft point pointed Soft point pointed bosttail Hollow point boottail Full jacket bosttail Soft point pointed boottail Full jacket pointed	130 130 130 150 150	3140 3140 3140 2002 2002	2966 2884 2860 2944 2616 2616	2694 2639 2593 2753 2436 2436	2435 2404 2338 2568 2262 2262	2578 2847 2847 2847 2616 2616	2150 2401 2362 2502 2280 2280	1773 2011 1941 2188 1977 1977	1448 1669 1578 1904 1705 1705	ן. מ ן.	1.4 1.6 1.4 2.0 2.0	43 47 48 43 57 57

norma _____

		1	r				r				<u> </u>	Mar he	ahi	
Index	Contridoe	Bullet	V	Nocity, 1	ent per s	юс.	1	inergy, f	ool pour	the state	of Ire	iectory.	incher	i n
₩.		Weight grs.	Muzzia	108 yds.	200 yds.	300 yds.	Hwzzle	100 yets.	200 yds	. 300 yds.	Tr. 100 yets.	200 yda	Tr. 300 yes.	
	······································											<u> </u>		
29	7 x 57 Soft point pointed	110	3068	2772	2528	2277	2300	1904	1561	1267	۰.	1.6	5.0	1.1
30	Soft point pointed boattail	150	2756	2539	2331	2133	2530	2148	1810	1516	1 1	2.2	6.2	
12	Soft point round nose	175	2490	2170	1900	1680	2410	1830	1403	1097	1	33	2.0	
_	7 x 61 5 & H (26 in.)							-						
	Soft point pointed bootton		3100	80	2/5/	20175	3415	3045	2/01	2393	° 1	1.3	4.3	
35	Soft paint round nose	110	1970	1595	1300	1090	948	672	413	290	1	6.4	19.0	
34	Full jockst round nose	110	1970	1595	1300	1090	948	622	413	290	1	4.4	19,0	
v	Soft point flat nose	170	2220	1890	1630	1410	1861	1347	1003	750	1	4.1	11.9	
	.308 Wim.													
36	Soft point pointed boottail	150	2860	2570	2300	2050	2725	2200	1762	1400		2.0	6.Z 5.9	
39	Soft point pointed boattail	120	2610	300	2210	2020	2725	2303	1952	1631	2	2.5	6.6	
179	Norme "Dval Core"	1 100	3100	2004	2668	2464	342	3318	2846	2427	0	1.6	4.6	
	.30 - 06													
40	Full jocket boottoil	130	3281	275	2636	233	3108	2514	2006	1571		1.5	4.6	
43	Soft point pointed boottoil	150	2772	2480	2402	2141	2943	2373	1922	1527	1 1	1.9	용	
45	Soft point pointed beattoil	190	2700	2494	22%	2109	2714	2487	2107	1778	1 7	2.3	6.4	
1	Full jocket boatteil	180	2/00	2530	2365	2206	2914	25.57	2236	1946	1	2.2	6.1	
41	Soft point round nose Full jocket round nose	220	2411	2197 2197	1996	1809 1807	2840 2840	2358 2358	1947 1947	1599	1	3.1	15	and the second se
	.300 H & H										ļ			
50 51	Soft point pointed boottail Hollow point boottail	- 180 180	2920	2706 2704	2500 2500	2297 2297	3409	2927 2927	2499 2499	2107 2107	8	1.9 1.9	5.3 5.3	.306 Norma Magnum
53	Soft point round nose Full indeet round boottail	220	2625	2408	2170	1986 1986	3367	2814	2301	1927	1 2	2.5	7.0	
	7.65 Argentine			•							1			
187	Soft point pointed	150	2920	2630	2355	2105	2841	2304	1843	1476	1.1	2.0	5.8	
55	_303 Brtt. Soft point pointed	130	2789	240	2195	1929	2246	1790	1391	1075	3	23	6.7	
10	Soft point pointed Soft point pointed boottail	150	2720	2440	2170	1930 1965	2465	1983	1569	1241		2.2	6.5 7.3	
ŝ	Soft point round nose	215	2182	1947	1733	1541	2273	1810	1434	1134	3	4.1	11.2	
110	7,7 Jap. Soft point pointed	1 130	2750	2636	2340	2065	2513	2004	1581	1231		20	59	<u> </u>
2	Soft point pointed boottoil	180	2493	2292	2101	1922	2484	2100	1765	1477	1	2.3	7.7	
	8 x 57 JR	1.3	1		1001						1			i / R
61	Soft point round nose	1%	2352	2045	1761	1513	2428	1820	1530	996	1	3./	10.6	
-	Soft point round note	196	2395	2074	1795	1535	2477	1873	1402	1026	1	35	10.3	
	8 x 57 J	1	I				1				Ι.	• •		
112	Full jocket jound note	157	2773	2362 2362	2030	1734	2618	1970	1455	10.52	2	2.6	7.9	
	Soft point round nose Full incluit round nose	196	2526	2195	1894	1627	2778	2097 2077	1562	1152	13	11	- 21	
	8 x 57 JS	1	1											
10	Soft point pointed Soft point round nose	123	2007	2515 2362	2170 2030	1857 1734	2277	1728	1286	1052	1	2.3	6.8 7.9	
45	Saft paint round nose	196	2526	2195	1894	1627	2778	2097	1562	1152	1	3.1	9.1	
ā	Full jacket bostteil	190	2625	2456	2274	2137	3031	2653	2314	2012	1 3	2.4	4.5	
"	Soft point round nose 958 Wile.	277	2330	2010	1855	1450	2750	3143	1/35	13/3	1	3.4	,,	
<u>n</u>	Soft point semi pointed	200	2530	2210	1910	1640	2843	2170	1621	1195	1 4	3.1	8.8	
"	15E NOTMA MAGNUM	_	1	2014		1.00	_	240		1.507	1 *	. .,	10.4	
152	Soft point sumi pointed	250	2790	2493	2231	2001	4322	3451	2764	2223	2	2.4	4.6	
n	9,3 x 57 Hollow peint boattnil	220	232*	2032	1763	1527	2795	21.27	1/02	1202	1	37	10.6	
74	Soft point round nose	286	2067	1818	1595	1404	2714	2099	1616	1252		4.8	13.2	
	9,3 x 62 Hollow point boottoil	222	2625	2304	2009	1742	3651	2735	2080	1564	1 2	2.6	6.)	
76	Full jocket pointed	232	2625	2350	2092	1855	3551	2846 7769	2255	1773	1 2	2,7	7.4	
[%	Full jacket round note	2%	2362	2088	1137	1612	3544	2/69	2144	1651	1 2	3.5	9.8	
l	9,3 x 74 R		3475	2304	2009	1742	355	2734	2080	1554		2.0	6 1	
n.	Full jacket pointed	232	2655	2350	2092	1855	355	2846	2255	1773	1	27	7.4	358 Norma Megoum
12	Full jacket round nose	286	2362	2000	1807	1612	354	2749	2144	1451	1 3	35	9.	
	.375 H & H	1	-	245	2010	1995	1	2470	1010	7775	1 .			
85	Soft point semi pointed	300	2550	2280	2040	1830	600	3464	2/73	2231	1	2.8	7.4	
L	L	1					I				L			1

Trajectory is given in relation to line of sight 1" above center of bore at muzzle.

Exterior Ballistic Data for British Conterfire Rifle Cartridge
--

Cartridge	Case longth inches	Ballel weight (grs.)	Permiser weight (grs.)	Velocity (R_/sec.)			Energy (R_/IL)			Drap (in.) †		
				Mozzie	100 yd.	200 yd.	Muzzle	190 yd.	200 yıl.	100 yd.	200 yd.	
*297/230 (Marris) Short	74	371	1% RN	\$75	720		63	43		15.0		
*297/230 (Morris) Long	*	371	2%, CM	1200	920	760	120	70	46	15.0	71.0	
P240 H&H Apex Flanged 240 Rated Diselans	2%	100CP	3856 INC	2800	2570	2355	1/40	1580	1230	23	9.2	
*242 Rimiess Nitro Exa.	2%	100CP	42 NC	3000	2740	2490	1970	1635	1355	บี	1.6	
244 H&H Magnum (Betted)	2%	100CP		3500	3230	2970	2725	2320	1980	ີ້	5.1	
297/250 Rook Rifle	76	55L	3 CM	1150	940	805	165	110	80	15.5	70.0	
256 (6.5mm) Manalicher 6 Emm Mann, Schoo	Z%	16058	36 NC	2350	2045	1765	1960	1490	1110	3,4	15.5	
275 H&H Maenum (Belted)	2%	160CP	52 NC	2700	2505	2320	2600	2230	1920	25	10.5	
275 High Velocity (7mm)	2%	140CP	48 NC	2300	2705	2515	2620	2280	1970	22	1.0	
276 (7mm) Mauser	Z%.	173SM	38 NC	2300	2015	1765	2040	1560	1200	3,9	16.0	
p7mm H&H Magnum Flanged	214	140CP		2650	2450		2184	1867		••	10.0	
*280 Flanged Nitro Exp. *280 Flanged Nitro Exp.	276	140CP	52 NG	2600	23/0	2355	2440	2080	1/30	23	12.0	
280 Ross Rimiess Nitro	2%	140CP	54 NC	2900	2665	2445	2620	2210	1860	22	9.0	
280 Ross Rimiess Nitro		160HP	54 NC	2700	2395	2110	2600	2040	1580	2.6	11.5	
*280 Jeffery Rimless	252	140CP	57 NC	3000	2870	2735	2800	2555	Z390	2.1	10.0	
300 (.295) Rook Rifle 300 Ebourned	1%	801.	4% CR	1100	915	785	Z15 610	150	110	16.5	75,0 AL A	
300 H&H Maenum Belteri	2%	1505.0	58 C	3000	2660	2350	3000	2360	105	22		
or (30 Super Magnum)		180SN	55 C	2750	2430	2130	3020	2360	1815	2,8	12.5	
or (30 Super Magnum)		220SN	49 C	2300	2045	1810	2115	1675	1305	3.9	17.0	
p30 Super Flanged H&H	236	150SN	55 C	2075	2581		2755	2225			÷	
p30 Super Flanged H&H p30 Super Flanged H&H		1805M	50 C	23/3	2309		2033	2131				
*30 Purdev Flamed Nitro	2%	15054		2700	2385	2090	2430	1900	1460	2.6	11.5	ž
303 British (Mark 6)	2%	2155	31 C	2050	1855	1670	2010	1650	1330	4,4	19.0	1
303 British (Mark 7)	2%	174S	37 C	2450	2250	2055	2320	1960	1640	3.0	13.0	÷
303 British 203 British	2%	150CP	38 C	2700	2465	ZZ40 1055	2440	2030	1680	2.5	13.5	13
303 British	214	215SN	31 C	2050	1790	1555	2010	1530	1160	4.6	20.0	
310 Cadet	1%	120L	6 CN	1200	1010	890	385	270	210	14.0	62.0	22 3
318 Rimless Nitro Exp.	2%	180CP	55 NC	2700	2395	2110	2920	2300	1780	2.6	11.5	
318 Rimless Nitro Exp.		250SN	52 NC	2400	2040	1715	3200	2320	1640	3.3	15.0	
333 Kimiess Hillo Exp.	271	31058	43 MC	2000	1950	1610	2750	2240	1790	47	28.0	- 16 i
350 Rigby Magnum Rimiess	2%	225SN	65 NC	2625	2307		3440	2657		•••		등을 날린
350 No. 2 Rigby Flanged	2%	725SN		2600			3400					17.32
*360 Nitro Exp. Flanged	2%	300SN	30 C	1650	1490	1355	1820	1480	1210	6.9	29.0	
*360 Nitro for Black Powd,	2%	190CT	22 C	1650	1285	1070	1150	700	485	7.6	36,0	글림퀄빌렸
o400/360 Perdey Flanged o400/360 Westley Richards	74	314SN	41 0	1900	1724		2537	2072				EESE
a360 No. 2 Nitro Exp.	3	320SH	55 C	2200	1999		3442	2845				22225
*369 Purdey Nitro Exp.	2%	270SN	6434 NC	2500	2135	1800	3760	2740	1950	3.1	14.0	19122
375 Flanged Nitro Exp.	7%	270SN	40 C	2000	1735	1405	2400	1810	1190	4.9	ZZ,9	2008
03/5 Rimless W.K. Mitro 216 Flanned Mannum Nilso	2%	27058	430	200	2280	1980	2040	2100	2360	78	125	분승등등을
375 Flagged Magnute Nilro	1.7	300SN	56 C	2400	2105	1825	3850	2960	2220	33	14.5	
375 Beited H&H Magnum	2%	235CP	62 C	2800	2495	2215	4100	3260	2560	2.4	10.5	- 3 77177
375 Belted H&H Magnum		270SN	61 C	2650	2325	2020	4220	3250	2450	2.9	12.0	5
375 Belted H&H Magnum	,	300SN	58 C	2500	2200	1915	4170	3230	2450	3.0	13.5	Ē
450/400 Micro CXP. 450/400 Micrown Nitm Fxm	3%	40051	60 C	2150	1890	1650	4110	3180	2420	ŭ	18.0	Ĩ
404 Jeffery Rimiess	23	400SN	60 C	2125	1885	1670	4020	3160	2480	42	18.0	*
p416 Rigby Magnum	23	410SN	71 C	2371	Z110		5100					
p425 Westley Richards	2%	410SN	~ •	2350	1000	1000	5010	-	-			
450 Nitro-Exp.	3%	48051	70 0	2130	1900	1000	6930	4220	2360	4.1	14.9	. HR F
*500/450 Magnate Nilla Exp.	3%	480SM	80 C	2175	1904		5050	3900				
o450 Black Powder Exp.	3%	3101	120BIA	1800	1510		2240	1570				
o450 Nitro for B.P. Exp.	3%	365CT	52 C	2100	1809		3578	2655				11111
577/450 Martini Henry	2%	4801	38% C	1350	1210	1110	1950	1560	1320	10.0	44,0	
577/450 Martine-Henry B.P. 465 MRM Notes Exp.	2%	4805	85 BHK 73 C	2150	1830	1670	1930	3580	2800	41	12.5	
470 Nitro Exp.	3%	500SN	75 C	2150	1890	1650	5140	3980	3030	4.1	18.0	
+475 Nitro Exp.	3%	480SM	75 C	2175	2000	1830	5040	4260	3580	4.2	18.0	
r475 No. 2 Netro Exp.	3%	480SN	85 C	2200	1925	1680	5170	3960	3020	3.9	17.0	
*4/5 No. 2 Jeffery	3%	500SN 520SH	85 C 25 C	2150	1925	1635	5085	3930 4795	29/0	4.1	20.0	-
500 Nitro Exp.	3	570SN	80 C	2150	1890	1650	5850	4530	3450	4.1	18.0	ž _
-500 Nitro for B.P. Exp.	ŝ	440CT	55 C	1900	1570	1290	3530	2410	1630	5.5	25.8	
o500 Black Powder Exp.	3	340CT	136 BIX	1925	1585		2800	1900				승 폭달
p500 Jeffery Runiess		535SN	95 C	2400			6800					문 영화는
pous Gibbs Rimless Magnum	16	4801	30 C 70 Bik	1250	1055	940	1670	1190	940	t3.0	52.0	
577 Solid Soudar								****				
577 Solid Smider r577 Nitro Exp.	3	750SN	100 C	2050	1795	1570	7010	5380	4110	4,5	20.0	20204

Mr. CORNWELL. In addition to the characteristics of the form which you have just described as indicating that the weapon fired a supersonic bullet, was there anything else about the waveforms that you discovered in your analysis?

Mr. WEISS. Yes; there are perhaps two things that are relevant to confirming that what we are dealing with here is not noise but is in fact a sound recording of a bullet, of a gunshot by equipment such as was used by the Dallas police motorcycle men. First and simplest is the following: that if, in fact, this was—no, let me put it differently.

You can in, as part of the prediction, you can determine what the general pattern of the shape will be at the microphone as you receive it. Now, for example, if at the microphone, as you receive it, you expect that—well, let me go back to the blackboard here, if I may.

Now if the muzzle blast came in looking something like this, it goes up, it goes down, and then it sort of settles back, then from some of these surfaces you can quite accurately predict that it will do exactly the same sort of thing, let us say that the echo shape will be simply a mirror image replica of the muzzle blast.

Now if this is noise, then there is nothing which says that it has to start out going positive. It could equally, let us say, going upwards, the sound could equally, with equal probability, start out going this way and come back this way. But in every one of these instances where we identified an echo as coming back from a flat reflecting surface, it has precisely the correct replication quality when compared to the pattern of the muzzle blast.

As I say, for noise, you have no right to expect that sort of thing will happen. It is like saying I have a coin which is going to flip once, and the first time it comes up heads, and thereafter every time it is going to come up heads. It doesn't happen that way.

The second thing is, if you look at these patterns in somewhat more expanded detail than perhaps is visible here, you will see in the case of the muzzle blast there is a very sharp, short, initial, positive, upward going spike or peak, then it goes strongly down, and then it comes up again, and so on.

Now, in fact, as recorded through a high-fidelity system and an open microphone, it really does this, it is very sharply upward first, then it goes down and so on.

Well, something must have happened to this upward, strong one to make it seem much smaller. It now is just a little bitty one over here. It goes down, and now it comes up afterwards, and does that sort of thing. And we considered why that is so, and thought that it is probable that if this is a microphone on the motorcycle, and the motorcycle, in fact, is over here in Dealey Plaza, facing in this direction, and if there is a rifle over here, that the windshield of the motorcycle is sort of between the sound that comes directly at it from the muzzle blast and the microphone, so the windshield is screening the microphone to some degree.

Well, the effect of that can be predicted. But to confirm our understanding of this, we arranged with the New York City Police Department to perform some experiments at their shooting range in the Bronx. We went out there, and they trotted out an old Harley-Davidson motorcycle and put a transmitter on it, vintage 1963 or 1964, and an old microphone pretty much the same kind as was used by the Dallas Police Department, and we performed some experiments with people firing rifles at various locations, sometimes with the motorcycle facing the shooter, sometimes with the motorcycle crosswise to the shooter. At the same time we made recordings using high fidelity equipment of the sounds of the shots.

Now there were two kinds of recordings made. The first, as I say, was high fidelity equipment, good microphone, good recorder on the spot. The second was through the microphone which was on the motorbike, which was a microphone of the type used in Dallas, through the transmitter, and recorded downtown at the police communications laboratory. And we compared the results of these two recordings, and what we found was exactly what we had thought we would find, that is, that in the case of the high fidelity recording, we got that kind of big, first spike upward and downward, and so on. In the case of the recording made through the police microphone, that first spike was greatly attenuated and it went negative and came back up and so on. This was true, however, only in the case where the motorcycle was facing the rifle.

When the motorcycle was crosswise to the rifle, the recording made by the police microphone fairly closely matched, looks, looked pretty much like, with some distortions, but looked pretty much like the recording made using the high fidelity equipment. So it was essentially confirmed that the windshield really does have this effect on reducing the strength of that initial, very sharp spike received, and, of course, this is what we have over here. It is consistent with the assumption that this is a microphone behind the windshield facing a rifle.

Mr. CORNWELL. Thank you, I have no further questions.

Chairman STOKES. Professor, you may resume your seat at the witness table.

The committee will now operate under the 5-minute rule.

Professor Weiss, I guess I am sort of reminded this morning of how, some months ago, when several members of this committee and I appeared before the House Administration Committee, which is the committee of the Congress that recommends funding for all of the committees in Congress, and one of the distinguished members of the committee posed the question to me, he said, "Stokes, has your investigation revealed anything that would change the course of history?" And I said to that Member of Congress that nothing that we had uncovered thus far would, in my opinion, change the course of history.

I am sure that as a scientist that you are aware of the enormous impact that your testimony has here today, because if the committee accepts your testimony, the committee then, in effect, accepts the fact that on that particular day in 1963 when the President was assassinated, there were two shooters in Dealey Plaza.

From that premise, one can further assume association, and then from association there can be the further legal assumption, the possibility of a conspiracy. So I am sure that you are aware of the enormous impact of your testimony here today in terms of history.

Mr. WEISS. I am, sir; yes, sir. Chairman STOKES. For that reason, I would assume that you realize that for many years to come your work will be scrutinized

extremely carefully by persons who are interested in this fascinating aspect of evidentiary material.

I would, therefore, at this point ask you the question I asked you in executive session. I would ask you to play the devil's advocate for us for a moment. Obviously there are other scientists in your field, men who are, or women perhaps, who are as eminently qualified as you and your associate are.

Would you, for this committee, then tell us what type of criticisms could other members of your field have of your work here?

Mr. WEISS. Well, a few things. I would, of course, assume that other researchers would read our written report before volunteering criticisms of what we have presented here today. But if I were a critic of this work, I would look to see if, in fact, it left out of these considerations any important parameters of the situation that existed in Dealey Plaza on November 22, 1963, that could affect the predicted positions of echoes, as I have done.

Now, when we did this work, we tried very hard to take into account every possible thing that might affect the accuracy of our predictions. We took into account, for example, the fact that the map itself is probably accurate to only about 1 foot, so we knew that there was no point in attempting to push for accuracies greater than that quoted, approximately 1 millisecond.

We took into account the temperature as given to us by staff members of this committee. We investigated the question, the fact of whether humidity might have any affect on the velocity of sound. We considered the question of whether there had been any significant changes in the architecture in Dealey Plaza area for those structures that could have given rise to echoes. We considered the question of waveshape, and of distortion of microphone, and of the transmitter, and tried to take into account additional distortions that probably would have been produced by the receiver and the Dictabelt recorder.

Now, if there is any weakness in the results of our analysis, it has to be in some consideration that has escaped us entirely, and that, contrary to anything I can imagine, would have significant impact on the measurements we have made.

We, in fact, in performing this work, made every single measurement there many times, each of us made the measurements on the map, checked the results of the other fellow's measurement, checked the calculations out many times, and just to be sure that there were no errors that had crept in and then propagated through this analysis. Otherwise, I really cannot see a basis for finding significant fault with the acoustical analysis as described.

Chairman STOKES. Then as a scientist, you are comfortable with the statement to this committee that beyond a reasonable doubt, and to a degree of 95 percent or better, there were four shots in Dealey Plaza?

Mr. WEISS. Well, I would agree with that, with the somewhat clarification, that since our work concentrated primarily on the third shot, the one from the grassy knoll area, I would imply for the moment, limit the statement to that, with a, again, a confidence level of 95 percent or higher, which I guess if I were a lawyer, I might well express as beyond a reasonable doubt, that shot took place. And then relying upon the corresponding confidence expressed by Dr. Barger about the other shots, I would agree with the statement that there is an overall probability of 95 percent or better that there were four shots fired in Dealey Plaza.

cent or better that there were four shots fired in Dealey Plaza. Chairman STOKES. Let me ask you this. This is 1978, this tape existed in 1963. Had this tape been given, let's say, to you or other scientists who specialized in this particular area, have you done anything new that could not have been done in 1963 with this tape?

Mr. WEISS. No, sir; the only thing that is new—this is an old technology that we are dealing with—the application is new, insofar as the use of the physics and science of acoustics for predicting the position of a microphone and/or a gun. I believe that the first application of it was only several years ago, and by Dr. Barger, in the case of the Kent State shootings. But other than that, there is nothing new in this at all.

Chairman STOKES. I recall at the executive session, I believe Professor Blakey asked you, for purposes of clarifying it for the committee, whether what you were basically using was high school physics and geometry principles, and that basically that is what you have done here.

Mr. WEISS. That is correct, sir.

Chairman STOKES. Now, what about the work of Dr. Barger? When Dr. Barger testified before our committee on September 11, based upon the work that he had done, he said to us at that time that there were definitely three shots, but would not commit himself to more than a possibility of a fourth shot. And, of course, we have now heard Dr. Barger's testimony in executive session, and we will hear it here later today.

Tell the committee whether or not, if he has now changed his opinion to agree with yours, whether such a conservative estimate on his part at that time and his unwillingness to say that, in fact, there was beyond a reasonable doubt a fourth shot, is the proper type of analysis that a scientist should have made at that time, prior to additional work being performed on his work.

Mr. WEISS. Yes, sir; Dr. Barger's analysis was exactly right, as a matter of fact. The difference between his analysis and ours, which is, in fact, might be considered to be a kind of extension by analysis, by mathematical analysis, of what he had done, or a refinement, if you will, of what he did, is the following: that in our matching of the pattern, by being able to predict precisely for a precise location of a microphone in the plaza what the echo pattern would have been, I was able to use an uncertainty window of about plus or minus 1/1,000 of a second at each of the echo points that I had predicted when I made the comparison to the peaks on the waveform of the Dallas Police tape recording.

Now, in Dr. Barger's work, because his data were based on an array of microphones that were strung out in Dealey Plaza, microphones spaced, as I recall, 18 feet apart, he could not be sure where the presumed motorcycle microphone was in relationship to any one of those microphones, so he had to use an uncertainty window which was wider. The microphone on the motorcycle, for example, could have been halfway between two of his microphones, or closer to one, or closer to another. Because he could not know precisely where it was, he had to use a window which was about plus or minus 6 milliseconds wide, total width of about 12 milliseconds, compared to a total width here of about 2.

Now, that difference is very significant in the, insofar as it affects the degree of confidence that you can express in whether or not the patterns that is observed there that matches a prediction or an observed set of data is, in fact, perhaps noise and not meaningful data.

And his number is a very reasonable one. Fifty percent is what I, myself, would have quoted under those circumstances.

Chairman STOKES. Thank you, Professor.

My time has expired.

The gentleman from North Carolina, Mr. Preyer.

Mr. PREYER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Thank you, Dr. Weiss. I think that many of us who aren't scientists, when we first heard of the acoustics test, tended to think of it as some sort of arcane science, perhaps like a polygraph test, which my former colleague, Senator Erwin, once called modern witchcraft. But I gather you are telling us that this is not like a polygraph test or modern, electronic witchcraft. It doesn't involve any subjective judgment; it is based on everlasting and relative simple mathematical principles.

It was interesting to me to see you use pen and string and thread, that you can physically maneuver and physically see until you come out with the kind of match which would not happen in the nature of things otherwise.

Mr. WEISS. That is correct. The differentiation is even greater than a matter of interpretation, as one would have to do in case of polygraph. You have to recall that polygraphs and other such devices are based on assumed physiological responses of the human being to some set of conditions or stimuli.

This has nothing to do with human responses or to interpretation, which may vary from one observer of results of a test to another observer. This is simple, pure, basic physics and geometry.

Mr. PREVER. I might say, the committee's experience with polygraphs, our expert panel, looking at various polygraphs that Jack Ruby, James Earl Ray, Nosenko and others have taken, hasn't been very encouraging as to the scientific accuracy of it; but it does seem to me that you pointed out this is quite a different situation.

We all know as human beings that sound plays tricks on our ears when we hear it. We had Dr. Green, a professor at MIT, a psychoacoustics expert, testify in connection with the witnesses that Professor Blakey mentioned earlier who testified as to where the sound came from, and he pointed out that the shockwave of a bullet causes a confusion of the direction of the sound, and it would make a spectator point to the direction from which the sound came that was actually being perpendicular from the area in which the sound came.

While I am sure your kind of equipment doesn't play the sort of tricks that sound plays on the human ear, a layman like me would wonder if other sounds had played tricks.

For example, what is the possibility of the backfire on a motorcycle making this sort of waves and spikes? Mr. WEISS. Well, the answer to that question is, first, I haven't had the opportunity to examine the waveshape of a backfire of a motorcycle, so I cannot say absolutely that this might not resemble it in some way, but if there was a motorcycle backfiring in this instance, that motorcycle was up there behind the stockade fence in Dealey Plaza.

Mr. PREYER. You mentioned—and we will all be looking for possible flaws in your analysis in view of the importance of it, as Chairman Stokes pointed out—you mentioned that you excluded in your calculations anything at the noise level, and you matched peaks above the noise levels. You then said something like there are 10 such peaks, and I understood you to say there should have been 12. What was the meaning of that?

Mr. WEISS. Well, in fact, there are those 12 that were predicted, are actually there. Just two of them, for reasons that I am not sure of, came in somewhat smaller than I expected them to be, and indeed fell below the noise level. Because they fell below the noise level, although I was confident that I had actually confirmed their identification, I did not include them in the correlation equation. Had I done so, it would only have strengthened the equation, and quite significantly strengthened it. But in order to be conservative in this calculation, I had to simply reject them from consideration. In fact, in the act of rejecting them I simply—in computing the equation, the fact that I expected 12 but found only 10—I actually weakened the correlation.

Mr. PREYER. So you did not exclude two, which did not confirm your analysis?

Mr. WEISS. No, sir.

Mr. PREYER. But you had two which would have further corroborated——

Mr. WEISS. That is correct.

Chairman STOKES. The time of the gentleman has expired.

The gentleman from Ohio, Mr. Devine.

Mr. DEVINE. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Dr. Weiss, we appreciate your contribution to the record now in public session.

Do you consider your profession pretty much of an exact science? Mr. WEISS. Yes, sir.

Mr. DEVINE. Much more so, I take it, than you feel in the polygraph field, because the human factor is not as prevalent? Mr. WEISS. That is correct.

Mr. DEVINE. Do you consider Dr. James Barger an expert?

Mr. WEISS. Yes, sir, I do.

Mr. DEVINE. And do you respect his opinion very much?

Mr. WEISS. I do.

Mr. DEVINE. Do you think that he made an incomplete study, inasmuch as his conclusions, when he testified here, I think on September 11, suggested that there was about a 50-50 chance that a shot was fired from the grassy knoll?

Mr. WEISS. No, sir. That study, as it was being performed, was moving exactly along the path that any study of this sort ought to move.

Mr. DEVINE. Yet you saw fit to supplement his study by a number of things—and I have outlined them here—by seeking to

determine where the source of the sounds were, where reflection surfaces were, where the motorcycle was—you assumed it was in the neighborhood of the strongest impulses from the grassy knoll the velocity of sound at the temperture given on November 22, 1963, as well as the time intervals and the echoes.

Now did Dr. Barger fail to take these important things into consideration in his study, or are these things that you found necessary in order to arrive at a different conclusion?

Mr. WEISS. No; as a matter of fact, Dr. Barger actually intrinsically used all of his information in his study and, in fact, it really was as a result of his study that we were able in the first place to say that the motorcycle was there in Dealey Plaza. It was because of his study that we were able to say that at the time of shot No. 3 it was, in fact, in the vicinity of the microphone No. 4 position in the array when the experiment was performed in Dealey Plaza.

All of the things that Dr. Barger did were natural steps along this kind of investigation. I am sure that had it been continued, or had there been more time available to Dr. Barger, this further result would have been the natural evolution of that process.

Mr. DEVINE. Thank you.

Going into a different direction, I assume you were not present when Dr. Barger testified on the previous occasion; however, if I am not mistaken, at that time they played a recording of the sounds, and I think, inferentially, although you suggested that all of these tests may have been available to the Warren Commission had they sought them, that under the more sophisticated electronic sound selection, to use an expression, that you are able to pretty well remove the motorcycle noise, remove the street noise and still have the blips left on the tape.

As I recall, when those tapes were played before this committee, one, two and four sounded quite alike, but the third blip, which from your testimony would suggest the one from the grassy knoll, was of a different sound, at least to a layman's ear. You have probably heard those statements since that time.

Have you come to any conclusions that the sounds were identical or that there was a difference?

Mr. WEISS. No. As a matter of fact, I did not hear that tape. Mr. DEVINE. You did not hear it?

Mr. WEISS. No, sir.

Mr. DEVINE. Do you have an opinion as to whether, if in fact there was a shot from the grassy knoll, whether it hit anything in the motorcade?

Mr. WEISS. I have no way of knowing that, sir. There is no way of predicting or determining that from the data that are available.

Mr. DEVINE. Did you not try to coordinate the tapes with the Zapruder films and come to conclusions?

 \mathbf{M} r. WEISS. Well, we had tried some matching, but now we are sort of out of the area of pure acoustics and getting into other areas, and there are various matters that in fact can be raised, but since that is not an area of my expertise, I really would rather not comment on that.

Mr. DEVINE. Thank you very much.

You, of course, understand the very difficult position that this committee finds itself in. I think it was pretty well put in an editorial by a local paper here, how much weight in an evidentiary study, whether by a court or a congressional committee, should be assigned to an arcane science understood only by the same experts who draw the conclusions?

Mr. WEISS. Well, I beg to disagree with the phrasing, as elegant as it is. This is not an arcane science insofar as it is taught in high school and college level physics, to begin with, and it can be explained and demonstrated in the manner in which I attempted to, and I think can be understood by anybody who has ever heard an echo.

Mr. DEVINE. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman STOKES. The time of the gentleman has expired.

The gentleman from the District of Columbia, Mr. Fauntroy. Mr. FAUNTROY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Weiss, you have cleared up for us the question as to whether you employed the marvels and refinements of computerized electronics to reach your conclusion about the 95 percent chance of a shot from the grassy knoll. You have also dealt with noises which are indistinguishable to the unaided ear. And is it your testimony that the shots that you have distinguished were not backfires?

Mr. WEISS. Not exactly so, sir. In the case of shot No. 3, since there is evidence of a shockwave preceding the muzzle blast, then it would have to be concluded that this was not a backfire, since backfires are not known to produce shockwave sounds.

Mr. FAUNTROY. Then your answer is yes, that the shot which you examined, the noise that you examined, was not in fact a backfire?

Mr. WEISS. That is correct, sir.

Mr. FAUNTROY. If it had been a backfire, you testified it would have had to come from the grassy knoll?

Mr. WEISS. That is correct, since I did not concern myself with the nature of the sound, only the location at which it originated.

Mr. FAUNTROY. But from your knowledge of sound and the velocity of a missile traveling at that speed, it would not have been a backfire?

Mr. WEISS. That is correct.

Mr. FAUNTROY. All right. Thank you.

Second, the problem that we have is that nobody saw anyone with a rifle in that area. My question is: Could a shot from a pistol have created the same noise, shockwaves and echoes?

Mr. WEISS. In order to do so, the bullet fired from such a pistol would have had to have left the muzzle at supersonic speed, and so, if indeed there are pistols that fire supersonic bullets, the answer would be yes in such a circumstance. However, to my understanding, most pistols do not fire supersonic bullets.

Mr. FAUNTROY. So that on the basis of your knowledge we would have to identify a pistol that fired that fast before you could conclude that it was probably a pistol or could have been a pistol?

Mr. WEISS. Could have been; that is correct.

Mr. FAUNTROY. I guess my question, Mr. Chairman, now goes to staff, Mr. Cornwell or Mr. Blakey, and that is, what do we know about the alleged encounter with a person bearing Secret Service credentials in the area of the grassy knoll? Mr. BLAKEY. Mr. Fauntroy, the committee did look into that incident and did what it could 15 years later to determine whether it occurred and, if it occurred, could we identify the individual.

The testimony in essence is that an individual identified himself by showing what he said to be Secret Service credentials behind the picket fence, and based on that was allowed to continue.

A careful examination of where all of the Secret Service agents were that day, and their duty assignments, indicates that no Secret Service agent was in that area. And that is about as far as we have been able to carry it.

Mr. FAUNTROY. But who had the encounter?

Mr. BLAKEY. My memory is, a policeman, one of the first to come up over the fence, ironically, with a gun drawn, encountered an individual who, seeing the gun, identified himself as a Secret Service agent and was thus able to pass on.

Mr. FAUNTROY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman STOKES. The time of the gentleman has expired.

Mr. FAUNTROY. I yield back the balance of my time.

Chairman STOKES. The gentleman yields back the balance of his time.

The gentleman from Connecticut, Mr. Dodd.

Mr. Dodd. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Thank you, Dr. Weiss, for your testimony this morning.

In responding to Judge Preyer's question about the degree of exactitude in your science of acoustics, has the science progressed to such a significant note in the past 15 years that what you have done could also have been done by the Warren Commission?

Mr. WEISS. Well, as a matter of fact, the science, insofar as what I needed to know in order to do what I have done, was known long before 15 years ago, so that it could have been done at that time, yes, sir.

Mr. DODD. What about the tests of Dr. Barger?

Mr. WEISS. Yes, those also.

Mr. DODD. So there has been no appreciable improvement in the science in 15 years that what you did or what Dr. Barger did would have precluded the Warren Commission or someone conducting a similar test in 1963 from reaching the same conclusions that you have?

Mr. WEISS. Nothing that I know of. The only difference that I recall is that in part of the work that Dr. Barger did, in order to establish that there were no indications of shots earlier than the timeframe indicated, he used a novel type of filtering technique to remove the sound, to reduce the sound level of the motorcycle and thereby hopefully expose impulse sounds similar to those that we have observed in the region of the shot here.

That technique has been developed only in the last 15 years. Mr. DODD. You, in responding to Chairman Stokes and Mr. Fauntroy, indicated that as a result of your assessment of these wave forms you rule out the possibility of backfire as causing a similar echo pattern. Is that correct?

Mr. WEISS. Well, not so much the echo pattern as the evidence of a shockwave present, but also, as I indicated, that if there was backfire it had to have been from the same location that I place the shooter of the rifle. Mr. DODD. My point is this: Are you excluding all other possible noise patterns that could have produced a similar kind of wave form that we see on your predicted response tape or that was evident on the Dallas Police Department tape?

Mr. WEISS. If there are other kinds of sounds which resemble sounds produced by a bullet in supersonic flight followed by the sound of a muzzle blast, then they must, of course, be considered, but I don't know that there is.

Mr. DODD. Could you share with this committee what other possible noises could produce that sort of thing, other than a rifle or a pistol?

Mr. WEISS. I don't know—that is the point I was trying to reach—can I think of any that might resemble it.

Mr. DODD. Was there any assessment made of other things that might have been occurring at that time at Dealey Plaza which could have produced that kind of noise pattern?

Mr. WEISS. I think somebody had once suggested a firecracker being thrown, or something like that.

Mr. DODD. Well, there was a train. I think we had evidence that there was a freight train that was moving or present at the time in Dealey Plaza. Could a train have done anything, cars backing into each other?

Mr. WEISS. No, sir, they would not have produced this kind of pattern.

Mr. DODD. Let me ask you something and see if I have, after listening to you—this is my third or fourth time, I think I am beginning to understand some of the terminology.

Is this statement correct? Would the absence of any identifiable pattern in the predicted response from the Dallas Police Department tape, would that raise a serious question as to the authenticity of the test, the absence of an identifiable pattern, and one from the other?

Mr. WEISS. Well, the test is authentic, regardless. If I could not find a pattern that matched sufficiently closely, I would only have been able to conclude that we have not found proof either that this is a shot that was recorded or that there was a microphone at that location in Dealey Plaza.

Mr. DODD. So it would raise questions, anyway, as not necessarily to the authenticity of the test, but rather whether or not your predicted response compared favorably to a certain degree of probability with the original tape?

Mr. WEISS. That is correct. We could not make a statement that there was a 95-percent probability of having identified a shot.

Mr. DODD. Conversely, could we also say that the inclusion of a wave form in the Dallas Police Department tape that it would have been impossible to record on the predicted response recording, would also raise serious questions?

Mr. WEISS. I'm not quite sure what you are asking.

Mr. DODD. We have evidence that there was a Dallas Police Department tape under, I guess it is exhibit F-355, the carillon bell going off in Dealey Plaza. That is on the Dallas Police Department tape.

To the best of our knowledge, there were no bells ringing in Dealey Plaza at that time, November 22, 1963. How do we explain the ringing of a carillon bell that would be impossible to record at Dealey Plaza?

Mr. WEISS. Offhand, I really can't address that question, since I didn't consider it in any detail when I was examining these data.

Mr. DODD. As someone who is trained and provides expertise in this area, my point is, can you have the sound of something that could be impossible to be heard on a tape-recording and somehow that be picked up some other place? Was it possible for another policeman to have had his tape-recorder on at some other location?

Mr. WEISS. Yes; that is a possibility. I think Mr. Aschkenasy wants to say something.

Mr. ASCHKENASY. You are making an assumption that there was a source of a bell in Dealey Plaza, but that is your assumption. However, you have to look at the tape and the data on the tape a little more carefully, and one can see there an indication of a keying-on-transient which means that someone else tried to get onto the channel at that very time. He may have been in position to be close to a source of a carillon bell rather than anyone in Dealey Plaza, because there is associated with that carillon bell some indication of somebody else transmitting at the same time, which puts it just equally as well outside of Dealey Plaza.

Chairman STOKES. The time of the gentleman has expired.

Mr. DODD. Mr. Chairman, could I ask for unanimous consent just to proceed for a couple of additional minutes?

Chairman STOKES. Without objection, the gentleman is recognized for 2 additional minutes.

Mr. DODD. I realize that you are not an expert on police transmitters, motorcycle transmitters, but to my knowledge, anyway, having looked into this a little bit, it would be impossible for—and you correct me if I am wrong—but I am led to believe it would be impossible for someone else to interrupt a transmission once there is a transmission occurring.

Do you understand what I am saying?

Mr. ASCHKENASY. Yes. What you mean to say is, if one guy has the channel——

Mr. DODD. Has the channel open, it is impossible to break in? Mr. ASCHKENASY. It is not impossible to break. It is a question of the strength of each individual transmitter and its relation to the antenna that is receiving the transmission.

The one who has the stronger signal is the one who grabs the channel, notwithstanding whether someone else is on the channel at that time.

If I am coming in with a big 20-kilowatt signal, I will swamp everybody else in sight.

Mr. DODD. Then you are telling me it would be impossible to record two sounds at the same time?

Mr. Aschkenasy. No.

Mr. Dodd. Or is it?

Mr. WEISS. No. As a matter of fact—let me respond to that one. We sort of play ping-pong here. In fact, if you listen to the police tape recording during the entire period of the so-called—the 5 minutes when the microphone on this motorcycle was accidentally on, you can in fact hear other transmitters coming on. Most of them failed insofar as all you hear is the microphone click and you hear a kind of a chirp as they try to capture the channel.

But there are a number of times where you do hear other voices coming on, other people communicating, sometimes very distorted sounds of the voices, sometimes quite clear and intelligible; and it is all during the time that this one transmitter has been on. In fact, as you go on in time past the point at which the shots occur, the ability of other transmitters to come into the channel becomes increasingly—it occurs more frequently. You hear more people coming in. You hear comments to the effect that somebody has his microphone button stuck, and it is all audible and understandable, so there are indeed several transmitters being received simultaneously during that period, and therefore it could very well have been that there was another motorcycle who happened to key on at just that point in time and picked up the sound of a bell somewhere.

Mr. DODD. Let me try to conclude this, by asking you this, though. Having said that, and using the expertise that you have in acoustics, you, I think, said, Dr. Aschkenasy, that to have found a sound that you developed in your predicted response in some place other than Dealey Plaza, it would have been necessary to reconstruct, in effect, Dealey Plaza in some other place?

Mr. Aschkenasy. Correct.

Mr. DODD. So that even if that sound that we hear is the third or fourth response, that would have only been able to have come, based on your expertise and your tests, only could have come from Dealey Plaza, unless you could have recreated Dealey Plaza?

Mr. ASCHKENASY. Yes. Congressman Sawyer at that time asked the question, if somebody were to tell me that the motorcycle was not at Dealey Plaza—and he was in fact somewhere else and he was transmitting from another location—my response to him at that time was that I would ask to be told where that location is, and once told where it is, I would go there, and one thing I would expect to find is a replica of Dealey Plaza at that location. That is the only way it can come out.

Chairman Stokes. The time of the gentleman has again expired. The gentleman from Indiana, Mr. Fithian.

Mr. FITHIAN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Weiss, Chairman Stokes alluded earlier to some of the problems that your analysis will undoubtedly cause this committee, and indeed cause history and people who look at this on down the way. We may, in fact, be in the position of finally having raised more serious questions than we answered as a committee.

We are particularly aware of the lateness in the life of this committee, matched up with your findings. I suppose we could take some comfort in the fact that you came up with your findings 3 weeks before, rather than 3 weeks after, we rendered our findings, but I must, without being personal, now pursue some lines of questioning which I think will be asked of us, and of you and of your professional characteristics and findings, so please don't take the initial questions at least, personally, but I think that they must be asked. When you and Mr. Aschkenasy entered into this series of mathematical and geometrical computations, did you set out with any particular result desired?

Mr. WEISS. No, sir.

Mr. Aschkenasy. No, sir.

Mr. WEISS. We had no preconception as to what we were going to find. If anything, when we first heard the tape recording and first began to examine the data, our initial reaction was, somebody has got to be kidding; this can't be gunshots. But as we examined the data more carefully, subjected it to all the tests that we have described, the procedures that we have described, the results of the analyses themselves convinced us of where we were heading.

Obviously, we did not have any plan or any objective other than to do the best we could to find out what really these data represent.

Mr. Aschkenasy. If I may——

Mr. FITHIAN. Yes, sir; go ahead.

Mr. ASCHKENASY. If I may say just one line, it's that the numbers could not be refuted. That was our problem. The numbers just came back again and again the same way, pointing only in one direction, as to what these findings were. There just didn't seem to be any way to make those numbers go away, no matter how hard we tried. It was not a question of interpretation of the numbers; it was a question of what the analysis yielded, the mechanical analysis, because it was just a hand calculator and a piece of string, as you saw it, a tape measure, and it all just came out the same way.

Mr. FITHIAN. What were your instructions from the committee staff when you set out to extend or refine Dr. Barger's work?

Mr. ASCHKENASY. Is there any way to take Dr. Barger's statement of 50-50 percent and move it off center either way?

Mr. FITHIAN. And so you are telling me that it really didn't matter to you which way it moved, that you were trying to get at more certainty than a probability of 50–50?

Mr. ASCHKENASY. That is correct, sir.

Mr. FITHIAN. Did you have any instructions from any member of the committee, any suggestions, any recommended lines of pursuit, that you should follow?

Mr. ASCHKENASY. We were totally independent of the committee.

Mr. FITHIAN. Now during your testimony, Dr. Weiss, you stated that the principles you employ are really basically very simple; they are mathematical; they are a part of the physical sciences. Has this technique been commonly employed in criminal investigations in recent years?

Mr. WEISS. I think, as I stated earlier, the only application of this technique that comes to mind is the one in the instance of the shootings at Kent State College, and in that analysis and investigation the technique was developed originally by Dr. Barger.

Mr. FITHIAN. Then we are in a pretty small circle, the two of you and Dr. Barger and his firm, in what must be a much larger field, that is, the field of acoustics.

Are we saying, then, that this whole thing is really rather novel, that is, the application of acoustical principles to criminalistics, if you will? Mr. WEISS. Yes, sir; the application is novel in this area, perhaps because these are first times that questions of this sort have been raised, that is, "Given sounds on a tape which may or may not be a gunshot, can you identify what it was, and if so, can you tell where the gun was fired from or where the microphone was listening?"

I don't know if that question had ever been raised before Kent State, and for that matter how many times it has been raised since then.

Mr. FITHIAN. I realize criminalistics and so forth is not your profession, but as far as you know this is the first application of the principles of acoustics to ascertain the precise origin of a gunshot?

Mr. WEISS. That is correct.

Mr. ASCHKENASY. Congressman, if I may give you an analogy to that, it is almost like taking a wheel and putting it either on a bicycle, or on something newer than that, on a car. It is the same wheel. Principles of a pneumatic wheel of a tire, are the same for both, and they are basically simple and basically straightforward and incontrovertible, those principles, and yet there was one application before, and now you have another application which is new; but the results of the game are the same.

Mr. FITHIAN. Now I want to clarify in my own mind the distinction between your work and Dr. Barger's, and I have some additional questions on that which will come a little later; but if I understand you correctly, you did not, in fact, analyze the nature of the impulses, that is, you weren't working with filtering systems and the like to get rid of the extra noise. You were only working with the output of Dr. Barger's work in that area; is that correct?

Chairman STOKES. The time of the gentleman has expired.

Is the gentleman seeking additional time?

Mr. FITHIAN. I seek additional recognition for two additional minutes.

Chairman STOKES. Without objection, the gentleman is recognized for two additional minutes.

Mr. ASCHKENASY. Congressman, our input to this process were two tapes, basically, the tape of the test shots in Dallas in August and the other one was a high quality copy of the Dallas police tape recording in its pristine, natural form, without any filtering whatsoever, and that is what you actually see on that exhibit. That is from the Dallas police tape recording.

Mr. FITHIAN. To refine my question somewhat, as I understand, Dr. Weiss, the only additional analysis you made other than the mathematical computations with measurements and moving those around until you got a match was the possibility of sound alteration by the windshield of the bicycle or the motorbike?

Mr. WEISS. Yes, sir; that is correct.

Mr. FITHIAN. So that that was the limited area of your analysis of the impulse or impulses on the Dallas P.D. tape; is that correct? Mr. WEISS. That is right, sir.

Mr. FITHIAN. Mr. Chairman, I think my other questions can be grouped together a little later.

Chairman STOKES. The time of the gentleman has expired.

The gentleman from Pennsylvania, Mr. Edgar.

Mr. EDGAR. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Chairman, before I begin my questioning I would like to simply state that the questions that I am about to ask have been shaped and assisted by several people who have come and attempted to help me with this. The first is Dr. Arthur Lord, who is sitting behind me, who is a professor at Drexel University and has extensive background in ultrasonics and acoustics. And also in the audience we have Dr. Francis Davis, who is the dean of science at Drexel University, and a fellow in the American Meteorological Society; and also Dr. Marvin Wolfgang, who is a criminologist and a professor at the University of Pennsylvania.

These three gentlemen, at my request, came and reviewed the testimony which you gave a week ago, as well as the testimony that was presented to the committee back in September by Dr. Barger; and they have assisted me in asking, I think, some questions that are a little bit more technical and perhaps different from the questions previously asked; and they start with the whole question of temperature.

When asked about this previously this morning, you had indicated, I believe, that you received the temperature data that you took into consideration from the committee staff; is that correct?

Mr. WEISS. That is correct.

Mr. EDGAR. Did you feel that the use of temperature was not that important to the findings of this particular study?

Mr. WEISS. No; it was important to know approximately what the temperature was. The precise knowledge is not that important because the effect is not that great. We, for example, took into account the temperature of Dealey Plaza at the time that Dr. Barger's experiment was being performed and particularly at the time the shot was fired from the grassy knoll that was recorded by microphone 4, and that was known to be about 90° F. at that time. It was very near at the end of his tests and they had been noticing what the temperature was as the tests progressed.

Now at that temperature the velocity of sound in air is about 1,150 feet per second. By contrast, the temperature on November 22, 1963, was given to me as 65° , and the velocity of sound in air corresponding to that temperature is 1,123 feet per second; therefore, there is approximately a 27-feet-per-second increment over a roughly 25° F. change, or approximately 1 foot per second per degree.

Had there been a, say, 5° or so difference from the 65° I was quoted, it would have affected the calculations slightly, but not seriously, and certainly not affected them significantly for the earliest arriving or the earlier arriving set of echoes, but only for the really late echoes.

Mr. EDGAR. The temperature that you determined in November of 1963, you said was 65° ?

Mr. WEISS. That is what I was told, yes.

Mr. EDGAR. Do you know where they determined that temperature?

Mr. WEISS. No, sir; I do not.

Mr. EDGAR. So there really was no accurate way of determining the exact temperature in Dealey Plaza at the time of the assassination, other than statements that were given to you; is that correct? Mr. WEISS. That is correct. I would again, however, assume that if the temperature were quoted as 65° , measured at one place, then it would not be likely to be more than, say, 5° higher at another place in the immediate vicinity.

Mr. EDGAR. Well, let's make the assumption that they called the Weather Bureau and asked what's the exact weather on that particular day; the Weather Bureau presumably would have taken a look at their records, taken at a temperature gauge somewhere near the airport where their findings would have been taken, and if we just have that as an average temperature for the city of Dallas at that time, you drew on the map with your string and pins straight lines from the point of the presumed shot to the point of the microphone, and also straight lines to the point of the echoes. That was assuming that at the muzzleblast sound, concentric circles went out similar to throwing a rock or a pebble into a creek or pond, and those ripples went out in even circles.

Couldn't temperature have affected the time it took for the sound to have in fact reached the microphone or to have in fact hit the corner of a building and bounced back to the microphone where it was being received?

Mr. ASCHKENASY. Well, as we mentioned earlier, Congressman, we had received this temperature of 65° from the committee staff. We assumed that they had done their homework as to getting the temperature that was actually measured on that day. However, as Professor Weiss also just pointed out, is that the difference of temperature—it does, of course—it does affect, because we see that on the day of the experiment the temperature was 90°, and at the day of—on November 22, 1963—was 65°, and the tables give you two different speeds for the velocity of sound, one 1,123 at the lower temperature, and 1,150.

If we just take a linear extrapolation between those two numbers and we say that instead of being 65° on November 22, maybe close to 70° , so instead of 1,123, we have measured 1,128 feet per second.

Now what does that mean? A change of 5 over 1,100 approximately, a change of a half a percent. Now half a percent change would not affect our measurements because we did not know the accuracy of the map that we have. Was it accurate to a half percent? As a matter of fact, we discovered in looking at photographs and looking at the map that some of the details there were actually not correct.

So this is why we assumed that the 65° was a good, reasonable, ballpark figure, since, No. 1, it was given by the committee staff, and No. 2, distances over which we were measuring echoes, the distances are not miles; the distances are only hundreds of feet, and in 100 feet, half a percent of error is hardly measurable in terms of our measurement; and this is basically the thought processes that we followed.

Mr. EDGAR. In the first part of your comment you said it affected the later echoes; is that correct?

Mr. ASCHKENASY. It may have affected the later echoes, but the measurement of those later echoes is not that much later in relation to the earlier echoes. Everything occurs here within approximately three-tenths of a second, the whole echo pattern.

Mr. EDGAR. But how would that have affected your 95 percent certainty that you have just talked about?

Mr. ASCHKENASY. We said 95 percent or better; so it would have made the "better" a little bit smaller.

Chairman STOKES. The time of the gentleman has expired.

Mr. EDGAR. Mr. Chairman, I will not ask unanimous consent for 5 additional minutes if it is understood that we are going to a second and a third round of questions at this time.

Chairman STOKES. We will continue as long as the committee has questions.

Mr. EDGAR. I will come back to this question.

Chairman STOKES. Professor Weiss, let me ask you this: The bullet from the grassy knoll, do we know where it went?

Mr. WEISS. No, sir, we do not.

Chairman STOKES. And do we know the speed of the bullet? Mr. WEISS. No, we do not know that either.

Chairman STOKES. Can you tell us, then, why we do not know those things about the bullet from grassy knoll?

Mr. WEISS. Well, because the data won't permit us to determine it. All we know from the data is that there appears to be a shockwave impulse that precedes a muzzle blast sound by some number of milliseconds. I believe the number is actually 24 milliseconds.

Now if you knew—you have to know two things in order to find a third in this sort of situation—you have to know the direction in which the bullet was fired, and you need to know the muzzle velocity in order to be able to determine where the bullet's flight terminated.

Alternatively, if you knew where it terminated and knew where it was aimed, you could determine its velocity. Or, if you knew where it terminated and you knew what its velocity was, you could then determine where it was aimed.

But, you see, there are three unknowns that we are dealing with, and we only have one fact, and there is simply no way to be able to resolve the ambiguity here.

Chairman STOKES. So, for our purposes, we would be in the position of not knowing whether the bullet was fired straight up in the air or toward the limousine, or back away from——

Mr. WEISS. That is not quite correct, sir. We can say that the bullet was not fired straight up in the air because had it been, you would not have received a shockwave impulse at that microphone position; and, indeed, if it had been fired in a direction reverse to that of the limousine, you also would not have received a shockwave impulse.

Chairman STOKES. Then you are able to say, then, that the bullet would have been fired in the vicinity of the limousine?

Mr. WEISS. Well, one could say it was fired in the general direction of it. That could mean something well in front of it and something well behind it, as well as right at it.

Chairman STOKES. What happened to it after that we have no way of knowing?

Mr. WEISS. No, sir, we do not.

Chairman STOKES. Thank you.

The gentleman from North Carolina, Mr. Preyer.

Mr. PREYER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Along the lines that Mr. Edgar was questioning you concerning assumptions that may have been made about the scene and how they may affect your calculations, you mentioned when you were discussing the original assumptions you made that the tape recorder on the Dallas police vehicle was 5 percent slow. I wonder if you could discuss that a little bit and tell us, one, how do you know it was 5 percent slow, and, two, how important is it, what difference does it make, that we be accurate about that?

Mr. WEISS. As a matter of fact, we know that it is 5 percent or approximately 5 percent slow from the time analysis done by Dr. Barger, these data having been presented to the committee during the open hearing in September when he discussed this factor. He did this by extrapolating a straight line to fit the time announcements made by the dispatcher on channel 1, which is the channel on which these data were recorded, and found that its slope was about 5 percent or something in that vicinity.

Now this affects measurements in the following way: If the tape was, in fact, recorded slowly, then it would be played back—and we played it back on equipment that we believe plays at true tape speed as indicated—then if it was recorded slowly, events occurring, let us say, 1 second apart, when you play it back on a machine that plays a tape more quickly, will occur in an interval of less than 1 second. If you then make a measurement and forget that the tape may not have been recorded at the correct speed, you are in error; so you have to adjust the observed spacing between events, the events being impulses, for example, that you correct them to determine what they really should be or in fact were at the time that the recording was made.

Now this adjustment of 5 percent is only an approximate one. In fact, it was altered slightly during our analyses as we found it necessary to alter it, so that the data fell in a little bit better and a little bit more meaningfully. We checked with Dr. Barger on the validity of doing this, and his opinion was there is absolutely no reason that it could not have been done that way, that in fact the fit that he had was over an average of a number of minutes, and that the Dictabelt itself was not notorious for holding constant speed, so that its speed could have been varying by a minute amount during this period of time, so a small upward or downward adjustment was perfectly valid.

It therefore was necessary to make such an adjustment in order to find what the correct interval spacing was, or our best guess at what it was.

Mr. PREYER. I get the impression that the fit, the match, determined the tape speed, rather than the tape speed having much effect or influence on the match?

Mr. WEISS. No, because the adjustment that is necessary is only a small one. If it were a matter of saying, well, I have to slow this tape, or I have to speed this tape up, by, say, 20 percent, or slow it down by 25 percent, then it would have been a situation of that sort.

The trim was a very small amount around the estimate that had been made by Dr. Barger in the first place. For that matteractually, the adjustment was—instead of using 5 percent, we used 4.3 percent.

Mr. PREYER. If I might just ask one other question, Mr. Chairman, in another area.

You mentioned that this involves a new application of old and incontrovertible principles, and that the Kent State was the first application of the new techniques; and I gather it was the first application of the new technique which would rule out low level sound so that you would be able to hear the higher level sound?

Mr. WEISS. Not in the work that we did. We did not actually use any technique for suppressing low-level sounds. We just took the tape exactly as it had been recorded and analyzed it that way.

Mr. PREYER. My question that I wanted to get at was: Was your analysis, or any acoustic analysis from experts, admitted into evidence at any of the Kent State hearings or trials?

Mr. WEISS. I'm not sure what the results of that analysis were. I think Dr. Barger would be better able to answer that question.

Chairman STOKES. The time of the gentleman has expired.

The gentleman from Ohio, Mr. Devine.

Mr. DEVINE. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Dr. Weiss, I don't know how closely related are the science of acoustics and ballistics, but wouldn't it be a fact that muzzle velocity from a rifle would exceed the speed of sound?

Mr. WEISS. For most rifle bullets I believe that is true, yes. Mr. DEVINE. Therefore, the bullet or the projectile would probably arrive at the target before the sound would be heard by people at the target area?

Mr. WEISS. That is correct.

Mr. DEVINE. Therefore, in order to coordinate the Zapruder film with the dispatcher's tape of the broadcast on the motorcycle and the Dr. Barger acoustics studies, you would have to take into consideration the sound-impact lag, would it not?

Mr. WEISS. That is correct. It would depend entirely upon what you were trying to relate. If you wish to relate the moment at which an impact might have occurred, you might get one set of relationships or adjustments. If you wanted to, however, synchronize—if that is the idea—sound and film to what would have been heard in the automobile, then you might get a slightly different, but only a slightly different, set of synchronizations.

Mr. DEVINE. Of course, the picking up of the sound from different areas would be different than at the target area itself?

Mr. WEISS. That is correct, absolutely correct.

Mr. DEVINE. Let me just finally comment that I have had some experience with expert witnesses in the medical field and psychiatric field and the ballistics field and the fingerprint field and so forth. Wouldn't you agree, those of you that are engaged in expert opinion testimony, that reasonable minds can reach different conclusions from the same set of facts?

Mr. WEISS. Well, if the facts can bear alternative interpretations, yes, that would be true, they can. The only question, I think, would be relating to the premises on which the facts may have been based.

Mr. DEVINE. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman STOKES. The time of the gentleman has expired.

The gentleman from the District of Columbia, Mr. Fauntroy. Mr. FAUNTROY. Mr. Weiss, you have on several occasions indicated that there was, in fact, no new electronic equipment utilized by

you to establish these facts? Mr. WEISS. That is fundamentally true; yes, sir.

Mr. FAUNTROY. Therefore, we need not look for an analysis of how reliable the new equipment you used is, because you didn't use any?

Mr. WEISS. That is correct, sir.

Mr. FAUNTROY. Mr. Chairman, I just have one question, and that question is of staff; therefore, I would like staff to tell us the source of the 65-degree temperature determination which was provided the team here.

Chairman STOKES. Professor Blakey, do you want to reply to that?

Mr. BLAKEY. Mr. Chairman, I obviously would be corrected by the record and if my memory today is like it is normally, it is probably in error. My memory is that we got it from the Weather Bureau, which, of course, keeps relatively accurate temperatures; and they differentiated the temperature in various areas, and we took the one that was the closest to Dealey Plaza.

If that is wrong, I will stand corrected and bring it to the attention of the committee as soon as possible and insert it in the record.

I might add just a comment, and perhaps I could do it in the form of a question so that I am not in the position of inserting something in the record:

Professor Weiss, if you would comment on the following hypothetical: If you knew where the gun was, if you knew the muzzle velocity of the gun, and you knew where it hit, and you had a recording, could you determine the temperature of the air?

Mr. WEISS. Yes, sir.

Mr. Aschkenasy. Yes, sir.

Mr. BLAKEY. If it is true from extrinsic data, apart from the acoustic study, that we know those factors about, one, the first shot, the second shot and the fourth shot, then the temperature in the air at Dealey Plaza could be determined by the known shots that had been related by the medical and ballistics neutron activation analysis of Lee Harvey Oswald's gun, couldn't we? It is a possibility; is that correct?

Mr. ASCHKENASY. That is correct, except that you have to remember that when you hypothesize you are hypothesizing laboratory-ideal conditions which do not exist in the real world.

Mr. BLAKEY. Did you gentlemen make that determination?

Mr. WEISS. No, sir, we did not.

Mr. BLAKEY. How difficult would it be to do so?

Mr. WEISS. From the data that are available, I don't know.

Mr. BLAKEY. I wonder if you could supplement your testimony at this point with a letter telling us what mathematically the temperature of the air had to have been at Dealey Plaza based on an analysis of shots one, two, and four?

Mr. WEISS. That would require, for example, redetermining the locations of the echo-generating surfaces for the position from the

sixth floor window of the depository building, and that will take some time to do.

Mr. Aschkenasy. It isn't easy.

Mr. BLAKEY. But it is a mechanical possibility?

Mr. WEISS. It is a doable thing.

Mr. BLAKEY. Thank you.

Mr. FAUNTROY. Mr. Chairman, I want to be sure that I understand the answer to counsel's question. We know that the second shot struck President Kennedy somewhere behind the sign on the film. You can determine the distance roughly between the middle of that sign and the sixth floor window, can you not?

Mr. ASCHKENASY. Those who are expert at doing that sort of thing can.

Mr. FAUNTROY. You drew me a line a minute ago.

Mr. WEISS. One can determine the distance, yes.

Mr. FAUNTROY. The question, therefore, is, if you know where the shot emanated and where it struck, if you took the time, could you determine the temperature? And the answer is?

Mr. WEISS. Yes, you could.

Mr. FAUNTROY. Thank you.

Mr. WEISS. I was going to add another comment apropos of the precision of knowing the temperature. Since the effect of a variation in the temperature is slight, is that its only primary effect in fact in this set of calculations, will be to move the position, the initial position, of the motorcycle at the start of, relative to the point at which it is now, too, so that it might be either a little bit closer or a little bit further from the rifle at the time it first receives the muzzleblast sound? For example, if the temperature is, say, 5 degrees warmer, then as Mr. Aschkenasy pointed out, the effect will be a one-half of 1 percent adjustment. In fact, that adjustment can be applied quite easily to the position of the motorcycle. The motorcycle in that estimation is something like 200 feet away from the grassy knoll area, which would mean moving it by 1 additional foot forward or backward, whichever way.

Mr. EDGAR. Would the gentleman yield?

Chairman STOKES. The time of the gentleman has expired.

Mr. EDGAR. I ask unanimous consent that the gentleman have 1 additional minute.

Mr. FAUNTROY. I ask it, too, and I yield that minute to the gentleman from Pennsylvania.

Chairman STOKES. Without objection, the gentleman may have 1 additional minute.

Mr. EDGAR. What is the statistical evidence that atmospherically your temperature is not off by more than 5?

Mr. WEISS. I have no idea, sir.

Mr. EDGAR. If it is off by 10 percent, doesn't that affect— Mr. WEISS. Then there would be a net 1-percent change in the velocity of sound, and I have to move the motorcycle not by 1 foot but by 2 feet to compensate. That is the total effect, sir.

Mr. EDGAR. But doesn't that affect the number of millisecond signals that you use?

Mr. WEISS. No, sir. It simply means that the starting position of the motorcycle has been moved. If I had to move him 10 feet forward, then I probably could not get a decent match anymore. But that would probably be a 100-percent error in the temperature.

Mr. EDGAR. Are you 95 percent sure that the temperature was within the 5- to 10-percent difference that we are talking about, 5- to 10-degree difference?

Mr. ASCHKENASY. We had no reason to doubt the committee staff in getting the correct answer to the question that we put to them. We explained to them that it was important to know what the temperature was on November 22, 1963, in Dealey Plaza. This is the number that they came back with. Now whether there was any error intentional or unintentional on their part, right now we have to make the statement that it was never taken into consideration that there may be an error in that number.

Mr. EDGAR. I yield back.

Chairman STOKES. The time of the gentleman has expired.

The gentleman from Connecticut, Mr. Dodd.

Mr. Dodd. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Just following up on this point because, as I understood it, you made adjustments not just for temperature but you made them as well for the location of the receiver, the location of the alleged fire of the gun. Apparently, and I may have misheard you, but you also discovered some incorrect location in the map, itself, that apparently you had to make some adjustments for as well; is that correct?

Mr. ASCHKENASY. We did not make any adjustments. We just noticed that the map was not an exact survey. For example, the vertical, as is shown there in the lower right-hand corner in the photograph, shows evenly spaced columns. The map we were given by committee staff did not show evenly spaced columns. Columns could be echo sources. In this case they were not, but this came to our attention. We want to point out it was not perfect.

Mr. DODD. What I'm getting at is this. Assuming that any error that may have existed in temperature would be minimal, do you believe that a reenactment of it, of what occurred in Dealey Plaza, placing a person firing a rifle at exactly the location that you adjusted for, having a tape recorder going at exactly the same speed that the recorder was allegedly going on November 22, 1963, and exactly accounting for the adjustments that were made in the motorcycle, do you think that would in any way possibly narrow your prediction down even further? Would it be worthwhile, in other words?

Mr. WEISS. No; I believe all that would happen if you trotted a motorcycle down the street with a microphone receiving the sounds, that you would, in fact, come up with a set of echoes that would very closely match the set that has been predicted.

Mr. DODD. With regard to the placement of the firing person on the grassy knoll, to what degree of error do you allow? We have discussed this before in executive session, and I tried to recall your response. It seems to me you talked about 5 feet, a radius of 5 feet.

Mr. WEISS. Yes.

Mr. DODD. Are you suggesting that if we, one, move that firer by 10 feet or more from where you placed him, that that would throw off the pattern significantly, that the probability that you have arrived at here would diminish significantly? Mr. WEISS. Depending upon how you moved the shooter, you would affect one or another or several of the predicted echoes and, of course, depending upon how far you moved him. Now, if the movement is a small amount, let's say 5 feet along the line of the fence, then you can compensate for that adequately by moving the motorcycle a little bit and still get a pattern that will match. It may not match as close as plus or minus one one-thousandth of a second. It might be $1\frac{1}{2}$ thousandths of a second. If you start moving the shooter significantly greater distances—

Mr. DODD. What do you mean by significantly?

Mr. WEISS. Ten to 20 feet from where I have it now; then the likelihood is that one after another of these echoes will fail to be matched by any reasonable pattern.

Mr. DODD. Mr. Blakey, do we have a graph of the grassy knoll at all? Do we have any evidence that blows that up at all? Could you explain on the blackboard and draw a little picture of the area in which we placed the fireman, the rifleman, in the grassy knoll?

Mr. WEISS. You mean in terms of what you would see if you were standing there, actually a photograph sort of thing?

Mr. BLAKEY. I didn't understand the question. There is an exhibit already in the record. I believe it is No. 155 that shows the fence from the ground level. He would be able to indicate from there.

Mr. DODD. Is it from behind the fence?

Mr. BLAKEY. In front of the fence.

Mr. DODD. Maybe the blackboard would be better, it might be more graphic, and you can place it more clearly. Could you draw the fence as you would perceive it, looking out onto Dealey Plaza, and then place the rifleman in a spot where you think he would have had to fire from?

Mr. ASCHKENASY. Just to refer you to this map here, here is what is shown as the 5-foot high wooden fence. It runs in this direction approximately north-south and approximately east-west. I will just reproduce it larger.

Mr. DODD. That would be helpful.

Mr. ASCHKENASY. This is what I pointed out before, and we show, if we take a scale of 1 inch—let's say this is 10 feet—1 inch equals 10 feet. This piece of chalk equals 10 feet, and we originally placed him here, 8 feet from the corner.

Mr. DODD. Going along the fence.

Mr. ASCHKENASY. Running along the fence, since this represents 8 feet, we say we could move him within 5 feet of this location, from here to here, and get a reasonable match, still.

Mr. DODD. Where would be the direction of the highway or the motorcade?

Mr. ASCHKENASY. The motorcade is coming down here on Elm Street, right here.

Mr. DODD. And your margin of error would be anything beyond 10 feet you start having difficulties?

Mr. ASCHKENASY. Yes; then you put him already on the other side of the crux and the position begins to change, or you put him further out here. We certainly would have to exclude this region here because he would not want to be visible. If we put him too far back here, he would not be able to see down to the limousine, which is below his level. Mr. DODD. I am talking just from an acoustical assessment. Then you would have difficulty with the degree of probability?

Mr. ASCHKENASY. That is right.

Mr. Dodd. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Thank you.

Chairman STOKES. The time of the gentleman has expired. The gentleman from Indiana, Mr. Fithian.

Mr. FITHIAN. I was about to ask chief counsel or one of the members of the staff, as I recall way back when we had a photograph that the photographic panel was working with and there was a linear object behind the wall. I was wondering if, though that is not very conclusive evidence, if that linear object and that undefined object is roughly what we are talking about here.

Mr. BLAKEY. Mr. Fithian, again the record will correct me if my memory is wrong-we analyzed two places, photographed to determine if something could be seen. The photographic panel indicated that the area on the fence, which was one possible one, was not profitable. We could not get anything out of it. Consequently, additional work was not done on it. The photograph we analyzed in some detail in the hearing was of a possible person and a linear object behind the concrete abutment and not behind the picket fence. I might ask, Mr. Chairman, that exhibit F-155 be displayed at this point, and this is just moments before the assassination, and I would direct the committee's attention to the arrow pointing at the President's head. If the committee would look up and slightly to the left, you will see the cement colored area and above it, you will see the outlines of the picket fence. This is the concrete abutment, and this is the approximate area where an analysis was made previously. This is the line of the wooden picket fence. It extends in this direction back, and this is the area that is shown from the other side if we would refer again to the larger aerial photograph of Dealey Plaza; this is the picket fence coming this way and back over; and the line of fire, assuming a shot did occur from the grassy knoll, would be down in this direction. As in this situation, it would be down in this direction, coming from the picket fence down toward the car. So this could give you a visual image of what happened.

Mr. FITHIAN. The picket fence is some feet behind the concrete wall?

Mr. BLAKEY. That is correct.

Mr. FITHIAN. Thank you. Dr. Weiss, I want to pursue in this particular round of questioning the nature of the receiver and its ability to determine and therefore turn out the kind of shape that you worked with. If I remember Dr. Barger's testimony correctly before the committee in September, I was just going back through the documents, and I can find several references to it which I could read to you if you would like, but basically what he said was that given the limited nature or capacity of the motorcycle radio, that it did not indeed transmit the full picture of a very, very loud sound, that is, it attenuated or modified that sound simply because it could not accommodate that much of an impulse. Are you familiar with that particular problem that we ran into?

Mr. WEISS. Yes, I am.

Mr. FITHIAN. Now, does that problem pose any significance for you in the kind of mathematical extension that you made on shot No. 3?

Mr. WEISS. No, it does not affect the time at which an impulse will occur, only the amplitude or strength with which it is observed.

Mr. FITHIAN. Well, then, let me ask it another way. You were concerned about the alteration of the nature of the impulse by the windshield of the motorcycle?

Mr. WEISS. That is correct, only insofar as it is another means of observing a consistency between what is seen in the pattern and what is expected to be seen based upon both theory and experiment, that is, that the leading edge is much smaller than the cycle that immediately follows it. In reality, when a muzzle blast occurs, that leading edge is very much larger than the cycle that will follow it. There are two things that are reducing it as we observe it here. The first is the effect of the windshield, and the second is the effect of the compression caused by limiting action in the microphone and transmitter and almost certainly in the receiver and recorder as well.

Mr. FITHIAN. Does that in any way call into question the identification of the sound, itself, as that which reflects a gunshot from a rifle?

Mr. WEISS. Not seriously. Well, in effect, actually, rather than contradicting it, in a sense it supports it because all we see is all explainable and consistent with what we should expect to see if we take into account all the factors of the situation.

Mr. FITHIAN. Thank you. One other area that I am concerned about, as I was concerned in September in my own questioning of Dr. Barger, and that had to do with what he called false alarms. Is that term familiar to you?

Mr. WEISS. Yes, sir.

Mr. FITHIAN. As I understand it, to go back again and find some indications of this in Dr. Barger's testimony, but as I understand it, the reason he could not come up with a greater probability that there was a fourth shot was in part, at least, due to the possibility of false alarms being generated in the various noises. I guess what I am curious to know is how you eliminated those false alarms that were reducing Dr. Barger's probability estimate?

Mr. WEISS. The elimination, in fact, is a byproduct of the ability to narrow the window down from 12 milliseconds wide to only 2 milliseconds wide. By so doing, it is possible to now predict that the probability of a noise occurrence matching this closely is significantly reduced and indeed reduced below the 5 percent level that I have mentioned.

Chairman STOKES. The time of the gentleman has expired.

Mr. FITHIAN. Let me just for the record, Mr. Chairman, well perhaps more properly pursue this with Dr. Barger, but on page 68-69 of the transcript, Dr. Barger answers in part:

Therefore it would not be unreasonable to expect that approximately 5 of the remaining 10 correlations were also false alarms. That would indicate that about one-half of the detections that I did not previously indicate to be false alarms, about one-half of the remaining 10, are false alarms. This would indicate that the probability that each one is a correct detection is about one-half.

From that he went on to the 50-50 probability. Now, do I understand you correctly in that you are saying that simply by narrowing down the window, as you use the term, narrowing down the area—

Mr. ASCHKENASY. It is the uncertainty window.

Mr. FITHIAN. The uncertainty window to a very narrow space in numbers of feet and whatever other uncertainties you went into, that it is in that process that you reduce the probability of false alarm?

Mr. WEISS. That is correct, sir.

Chairman STOKES. The time of the gentleman has expired. The gentleman from Pennsylvania, Mr. Edgar.

Mr. EDGAR. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Just for a moment, I would like to go back to one of your previous answers in reference to the temperature. You had indicated that if the temperature was off by 10°, that that would necessitate your simply moving the motorcycle plus or minus 2 feet; is that correct?

Mr. WEISS. I believe so. I really would want to do the calculation before answering that firmly, but it is probably correct.

Mr. EDGAR. Isn't that somewhat of an oversimplification of the process? Wouldn't you also have to go back and redo the calculations of all the echoes that are coming off of the buildings?

Mr. WEISS. That is correct; for a 1-foot movement it would shift the other echoes, but, remember, it would also shift the time of the travel of sound from the source to those points. For example, supposing that the temperature was warmer by some number of degrees, which means the sound would travel faster and all sounds would be received at the microphone sooner, well, the echoes would come in sooner, for sure, but so would the direct muzzle blast come in sooner. This is a kind of self-compensating process. It doesn't compensate exactly and in order to find the correct compensation, you have to move the motorcycle a little bit. Remember, we are dealing with a difference in time of arrival between the direct muzzle blast and the echo, not the absolute time of arrival of these events. This difference becomes somewhat less sensitive to temperatures than each of the events, themselves.

Mr. EDGAR. I have been given a piece of paper that indicates that on November 22, 1963, at the tower of the Texas Book Depository, they actually had a temperature of 68° signaled at the top of it. Evidently this is backed up by some pictures. It has not been determined where that particular temperature had been derived from or determined in order to put it up on the tower. It also does not take into account the differing temperatures that might occur at the ground level or toward the tree area as opposed to next to a building where temperatures could vary. Is it your experience that in situations like this that temperature just doesn't vary that much?

Mr. WEISS. If we are dealing with a temperature variation of only 3° , for example, from what I have reported, the effect on the calculations would be negligible. As far as experience of temperature variations of a grassy area as opposed to a building, I have no experience there. But if we are dealing with temperature variations that are not of a large range, then the chances are it would have negligible effect. The sound goes to the building and then comes away from the building again, so it is affected only as it approaches the building closely and as it leaves the building closely. Once it's out in the street, if we are out of the building range, in a normal temperature range it's going to be, in the main, near the average temperature of the area.

Mr. EDGAR. As I listened to your testimony this morning, it occurs to me that what you are sharing with us is a very well done analysis that is, in a sense, done in a test tube; that is, your calculations are made with basic science tools, basic skills that have been known for a long period of time. You were given by Dr. Barger the set of parameters around which you were to look, and that namely the third shot, and you have been able to calculate in an office, apart from Dealey Plaza, the echo pattern off of buildings that you had some approximate knowledge of where they were. You don't have the exact knowledge of the exact angle at which the echoes are leaving the building; is that correct?

Mr. WEISS. If one makes an assumption as to where the motorcycle is, you have an exact knowledge of what the angle is, if you can believe the topographic survey map. You can easily calculate the angle, if that is necessary, but the angle is not an important consideration because it does not affect the time of travel of sound. It will affect, to some degree, the strength of the echo as we see at a particular point, but not its time of travel.

Mr. EDGAR. But essentially you were using a test-tube setting in order to come up with the calculations. While temperature was important, it was not that important. I would assume that you would say while wind might be a factor, it was not that important. Aren't there a number of variables like wind, temperature, number of people, number of cars, number of objects in Dealey Plaza that might have some effect on your calculations?

Mr. WEISS. In answering that, I would like to start with a quote that we have pasted to the wall in our office to the effect that the only difference between theory and practice is that in practice you can ignore nothing, you can leave out nothing. This is what we very strenuously tried to do in performing this calculation, recognizing that one could easily get into a test-tube situation by forgetting effects or by not estimating what these effects are going to be or can be. This is why we did take the trouble of taking into account the temperature, as a matter of fact, and to be concerned about other effects as well. It is our belief that we have, in fact, accounted for all of the things that can really significantly—and by significantly, I mean can affect the accuracy of the prediction, by significantly, I mean prevent us from finding a pattern that matches it within the kind of window we are talking about. As far as the effect of other people are concerned, and there certainly were plenty of people in the street at the time, they are not going to particularly affect the time of arrival of echoes received from the hard surfaces in the environment there. The walls of the building will still receive and reflect sounds. The people there can perhaps affect the strength of some of these sounds, but they are not going to greatly alter the time of arrival. Now, this understanding is not only ours. We, in fact, corroborated it by talking with other acoustics experts, and they agreed on this.

Mr. EDGAR. It is my understanding that due to the short time interval between shot No. 3 and shot No. 4, approximately 0.5 to 0.7 seconds, the possibility of an acoustical mirage should be considered as a possible explanation. Perhaps the most common illustration of the effect of an acoustical mirage is the optical mirage we see riding along a highway, and we look on the distance and see wet pavement, and when we get to the spot, we find it is not wet pavement, but a trick on our eyes. The phenomenon of an acoustical mirage, which I believe is called refraction or bending, is it possible that the closeness of the two shots, No. 3 and No. 4, could have, in fact, come from the same muzzle blast and could, in fact, be an acoustical mirage, a reflection, a bending off of the sound patterns, or a different approach of the sound to the microphone?

Mr. WEISS. No, sir; because in order for that to be true, you would have to, in effect, have had the sound of the muzzle blast transported by some means to the location of the grassy knoll area, and there emitted as if it had originated from that point. Since every echo that was predicted corresponded to an echo arising from a sound rising from that location, what you would have required is that echoes otherwise generated from a shot fired, say, from the depository window, would each have had its own peculiar distortion, transmission, characteristics such that by some marvelous process it occurred at the microphone, intact, and at the correct position. Second: As far as I understand acoustical ducting, which is what you are referring to, these things occur over very much greater distances than a few hundred feet as we are observing here. So I don't think that sort of phenomenon could have accounted for these two shots.

Chairman STOKES. The time of the gentleman has expired. Are there further members seeking further recognition?

The gentleman from Indiana, Mr. Fithian.

Mr. FITHIAN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Dr. Weiss, when you performed the test on the Harley Davidson with the New York Police Department, did you discover any characteristics that might help us understand why the officer inadvertently had the microphone on?

Mr. WEISS. Yes. I think Mr. Aschkenasy can answer.

Mr. ASCHKENASY. I am certainly glad you asked that question. At the time we conducted those tests, there was an officer who had been a member of the motorcycle police force in New York City for quite awhile. Once he saw we were playing around with the microphone and radio, and he was assisting in turning on the motorcycle and turning it off at our directions, he let on as to how many times that stupid microphone would go on every time he pulled the brake cable because the brake cable passed within a half inch of the microphone button that activates the microphone button, enabling it to transmit. That was a totally voluntary comment on his part which indicated to us that indeed it is possible inadvertently for a microphone to transmit without the rider being aware of it.

Mr. FITHIAN. The second question: Were there any changes in Dealey Plaza between 1963 and 1978 which altered the echo pattern?

Mr. WEISS. Not that I know of. We compared photographs and maps, aerial photographs, land maps, et cetera. All of the surfaces that we have considered are intact since 1963.

Mr. FITHIAN. The reason I ask the question is that if I remember Dr. Barger's testimony, they had to move one of the targets a bit because of the new freeway sign that does appear very, very close——

Mr. WEISS. That is correct, but, in fact, none of the echoes—well, insofar as that overhead sign, since it was not there in 1963, it could not have caused an echo in 1963.

Mr. FITHIAN. What I was getting at was, did you get some extra echoes that you could not account for?

Mr. WEISS. As a matter of fact, we found echoes in Dr. Barger's experiment not from the overhead sign for microphone position No. 4, but actually from the supporting columns that hold the overhead sign up, these cylindrical columns about 14 or so feet high. There were some very small echoes that bounced off there and could be related to those posts, but they were very weak compared to the other echoes.

Mr. DODD. If you will yield, it has been asked in the past, and I think you responded to it already, but the construction of the Hyatt Hotel is a rather significant addition in the vicinity. Did that make any difference whatsoever?

Mr. WEISS. No; because echoes from that structure would have come in much, much beyond the three-tenths of 1 second or half second that we have been considering.

Mr. DODD. Thank you.

Mr. FITHIAN. I yield back the balance of my time.

Chairman STOKES. The gentleman yields back the balance of his time.

The gentleman from Pennsylvania, Mr. Edgar.

Mr. EDGAR. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Dr. Weiss, are you aware of the phenomenon that exists out on the open sea when ships are trying to locate the port and they hear a foghorn in the distance? Are you aware of the phenomenon that occasionally the sound from that foghorn directs the ship in a false direction, as opposed to the accurate direction of seeking a safe harbor, and, in fact, in some instances those ships wind up on the rocks and go in exactly the opposite direction of where they should go?

Mr. WEISS. No, sir; I am not.

Mr. EDGAR. I would like to congratulate you for what I think is a refreshingly good answer. Let me ask you if you are aware of the fact that on radar scopes, sometimes the blips that occur on radar scopes are not accurate?

Mr. WEISS. That I am not aware of. I have some knowledge of radar, and I am not sure of quite what you mean by not accurate in this instance. If you could define the condition that might produce the inaccuracy, I could respond to it, but I have some knowledge of radar, having spent some years working with it.

Mr. EDGAR. How do you know that the squiggly lines you are looking at are really supersonic?

Mr. WEISS. We do not know it at all.

Mr. ASCHKENASY. They are not supersonic. Those are sound waves. Those are presentations of sound waves. The question, what

you might want to ask, is about whether we can tell a bullet was there, namely, was it creating a supersonic shock wave. That is what you are questioning. And those are not supersonic sound waves. Those are sound waves as recorded by a microphone, and put into electrical form by the equipment that was used to transmit it and record it, and there is nothing supersonic in those squiggles that we have up there on that board.

Mr. EDGAR. Would you answer the question I wanted to ask?

Mr. ASCHKENASY. Well, because you have a bullet that travels faster than sound, it will get to someplace faster than the sound reaching that same point. We are talking about two components, the bullet and the muzzle blast. The bullet flies, let's just pick a number, at 2,220 feet per second, so that it travels at twice the speed of sound for this particular example, when you fire the gun.

And it flies, let's say for 200 feet. It will get at the target 200 feet away in a certain period of time. Just like a boat pushes the water ahead of it creating the V-shape wake behind the boat, that is similar to what you see in a shock wave from a bullet. And that shock wave is what is recorded by the microphone that is right next to the target. Sometime later, finally the sound catches up to it and gets to the target, and the muzzle blast is recorded. That interval of time is fixed, by the fact that you have a certain muzzle velocity and you have a certain distance, they occur in a fixed time relationship. We have also the first, it's covered by the photograph—could somebody remove that photograph, please. If I may point something out there.

Mr. Edgar. Yes.

Mr. ASCHKENASY. I can point out here also these first impulses before the muzzle blast, those are the shock waves, and if you look carefully—I am sure you cannot look that carefully at that distance—but if you look at these graphs, because these microphones are located at different positions on the street, the relationship between the shock wave and the muzzle blast changes, and it changes in a predictable manner because the manner in which you expect them to change is related to where the observer, or the microphone is picking up both the shock waves and the muzzle blast.

Now, you measure here about on the average of about 14 milliseconds, 14 thousandths of a second delay between the shock wave and the muzzle blast. We go now here to the police tape and the measurement that we found was around 24 milliseconds here. It is now reasonable to assume because of the measured time interval that the impulse may have attributes of a shock wave.

If you expand the experiment tape and take an even better look at it, you find there is a little shock wave echo right in between the shock wave and the muzzle blast, and if you expand the police tape properly, you find similar patterns, implying to us that this impulse has the qualities, attributes of a shock wave.

Mr. EDGAR. Two further questions relating to that. Your length of little squiggly lines which represent this particular shot, does that impinge on the next shot?

Mr. ASCHKENASY. No, no; this point right here in time is approximately seven-tenths of a second before the beginning of the next shot, and this whole display here is approximately three-tenths of a second.

Mr. EDGAR. I know this was not part of your scientific work, but when you look at the whole tape played out, how many muzzle blasts did you see?

Mr. ASCHKENASY. We did not look at the whole tape as you describe it, laid out. We saw, we examined this one in very great detail, and we examined the other candidates that we had been asked when we reviewed the first approach and before the experiment that Dr. Barger performed.

Mr. EDGAR. But would it be your expert opinion that Dr. Barger would be able to have described and looked at the number of muzzle blasts?

Mr. ASCHKENASY. I am sure that he looked—I don't understand what you mean. When, muzzle blast relating to the Dallas police tape?

Mr. EDGAR. It seems to me if you have large lines indicating when the muzzle blast occurred, that if you looked at the total tape played out across the room, that we would see four things that would look like four muzzle blasts.

Mr. ASCHKENASY. However, they will not look the same, because at the locations where they were picked up the motorcycle was in different orientation relative to the sound source, and as was discussed earlier, the windshield has an effect, the position of the microphone, which we suspect was on the left side of the motorcycle, those all would affect the quality, if I can call it that you know, the shape of the received muzzle blast.

Chairman STOKES. Time of the gentleman has expired.

Mr. FITHIAN. Mr. Chairman, I have just one question of Mr. Aschkenasy before he steps down.

Chairman STOKES. Mr. Fithian is recognized.

Mr. FITHIAN. I did not quite understand what you said. Would the shock wave produce the same echo pattern as the muzzle blast?

Mr. ASCHKENASY. No, no; the shock wave produces its own echo pattern. I do not know exactly what it is, but this sure does look like one. It is a qualitative statement rather than a quantitative statement.

Mr. FITHIAN. Thank you.

Chairman STOKES. Mr. Edgar.

Mr. EDGAR. Mr. Chairman, I just have one additional question and that is the question of probability. The thing we have been reading about in the newspaper and what you have testified this morning is you are 95 percent sure that what we are seeing is a fourth shot. And if I understand the use of the word probability, it is based on some history. I wonder if you could describe the history around which your 95-percent probability is based.

Mr. WEISS. Well, the probability we are talking about here is simply that sort of calculation that says well, look, let us not talk in terms of echoes and so forth. We have a range here of about 300 milliseconds, and let us divide it up into 2-millisecond intervals, giving 150 intervals. Now suppose that we are dealing with a deck of 150 cards, and I tell you that in this deck there are only 12 spades. All right, if I give you 14 chances to deal cards from the deck, what are the chances that you are going to deal out 10 spades? The probability of that is less than 5 percent. In other words, the probability of something happening by a random process, that would have generated, in fact, a set of data that closely matches a known set of events, that is to say a predicted set of echoes, they are the knowns, the chances of that occurring is less than 5 percent.

Mr. EDGAR. So what you are saying is if we would go back to Dallas, and have a gunman perched on top of the railroad overpass shooting at a target, that there would be only a 5 percent chance.

Mr. WEISS. No; that is different situation entirely. That is not a random event. That is a systematical one. You are describing a specific process.

Mr. EDGAR. What I am suggesting is 100 different locations in Dealey Plaza where you could shoot a rifle and get echo patterns.

Mr. WEISS. No; again we are dealing with generative processes, not one of them will match exactly, unless he is merely within a few feet. If you pick the microphone where it was and move it at the right rate, and now we have all of these people spread all over Dealey Plaza shooting wherever they want, then not one of them is going to match as well as this does here.

If, however, you have a radio receiving signals, and everybody has heard radios that receive signals, there is a lot of static, and a lot of crackling noises going on, and some of those noises are people turning microphones on and off. These are random events, there is nothing systematic about it. It can occur at any time. There is nothing which forces a crackle to occur at any one particular time. That is the sort of thing we are talking about. Is this noise, or is this something that occurred through a systematic process? The chances of this being noise is less than 5 percent.

Mr. EDGAR. But, what experience do we base that on?

Mr. WEISS. Oh, long theoretical experience in probability studies of exactly this sort. This has been proven time and time and time again over many years, this sort of analysis.

Chairman STOKES. The gentleman from Connecticut, Mr. Dodd. Mr. DODD. Just going a step further, as I understood your response to Mr. Edgar's question and, in fact, your response earlier to the chairman's question with regard to the degree of probability, you are 95 percent sure that there was a noise emanating from the grassy knoll. To what extent are you sure, based on your responses to questions I raised with you, with like sounds that could create that pattern, to what degree are you sure that this was a rifle that was fired from the grassy knoll?

Mr. WEISS. Well, I never, I have not done any kind of consideration of certainty there. I cannot, in fact, say I am sure at all, all I can again do is point to the evidence of a shock wave preceding the muzzle blast, and, in fact, as Mr. Aschkenasy pointed out, there is even a kind of early shock wave echo.

Mr. DODD. But you were fairly, in response to my questions about similar things that could occur that would create a sound, you said to me that you did not know of anything else that could create a pattern such as we have seen here other than a rifle.

Mr. ASCHKENASY. Well, the question that you posed to us just a few seconds ago is what kind of a probability did we assign to the question of whether there was a rifle there or not; correct?

Mr. DODD. Correct.

Mr. ASCHKENASY. Now, how we did the analysis was to locate the source and the receiver, namely, the motorcycle. And the detail of analysis that we applied to that process was not applied to the question of whether it was a rifle or not. To us, we were satisfied enough that there were indications of a rifle, but we did not proceed to the extent that we did with locating the source and in locating the motorcycle. The question of whether it was a rifle or not is equally important and must be addressed with the same degree of refinement that we applied to that one.

Mr. DODD. Are there acoustical tests that could be performed that would provide us with some degree of probability as to whether or not that, in fact, was a rifle?

Mr. ASCHKENASY. I would take 10 minutes to think it.

Mr. DODD. I am sorry?

Mr. ASCHKENASY. I would need 10 minutes to think some tests up.

Mr. DODD. But there are tests——

Mr. ASCHKENASY. Oh, sure.

Mr. DODD. That could be performed?

Mr. ASCHKENASY. Oh, sure.

Mr. WEISS. By the way, for clarification of those listening who may be wondering what a shock wave is, that is the well-known crack sound that you hear when a rifle is fired that precedes the muzzle blast. It is normally almost simultaneous with the bang or muzzle blast, itself. It is similar to the sort of thing you hear when someone cracks a whip and, of course, a very louder and deeper toned example is the sound you hear when an airplane goes by overhead at a greater speed than the speed of sound. It is a sharp, very brief, but very intense sound.

Mr. DODD. May I address this to Mr. Blakey. I am curious as to why we did not ask for an acoustical analysis of that which created the sound in addition to its location.

Mr. BLAKEY. We began with oral testimony, an eyewitness testimony that heard rifle fire from that direction. We began with oral testimony of people seeing smoke from that direction. And the question was, was there scientific corroboration for what the people heard and saw in Dealey Plaza: That is, gunmen shooting from different directions.

When we asked Dr. Barger to determine whether he could detect gunfire on the tape, we asked him literally to do that. He did, and what he found on the tape apparently was gunfire that we had substantial corroboration for on shots 1, 2, and 4 from the depository in the ballistic and neutron activation analysis, and in the other areas. The material that they looked at for a possible shot from the grassy knoll on 3 looked like the other patterns, and the question that was asked of us was not did a rifle fire from that direction, but did a shot fire from that direction. And consequently what we have, what we were concerned with was the direction of the shot.

Mr. DODD. We made an assumption that it was a shot?

Mr. BLAKEY. No; I think that the match between the known shot in Barger's test and the possible shot in the 1963 tape was sufficiently clear on a 50-50 probability that it was 50-50 that it was rifle. Now, the next question was, could we carry that direction further, and we did. I don't know if it is fair to say we assumed it was a rifle. But what it corresponded to was a rifle shot. To the degree that it had a supersonic wave preceding it, one would suppose it was a rifle. In the original test shots it ought to be appropriate to note that we fired a pistol from the grassy knoll and we did not assume that it was either a rifle or a pistol on it. We fired both, and the correspondence was to the rifle, not the pistol.

Mr. DODD. You fired both the pistol and rifle?

Mr. BLAKEY. We fired both a pistol and rifle from the grassy knoll, and the correspondence was to the rifle. Mr. Cornwell has something to add to that, Mr. Dodd.

Mr. CORNWELL. I might note just for the committee's interest that marksmen with the Dallas Police Department that fired the pistol hit in an area after several shots, I did not check it all the way to the end, but after several shots you could cover all of their pistol shots with a quarter, so even though they were obviously excellent shots, the distances involved are not lengthy, so that, roughly speaking, the ability to hit a target at those distances would be somewhat comparable whether you used a pistol or a rifle.

Mr. FAUNTROY. Mr. Chairman.

Chairman STOKES. The gentleman from the District of Columbia, Mr. Fauntroy.

Mr. FAUNTROY. That raises the question in my mind as to whether in fact, there were at that time pistols that could create the impulse of a rifle in terms of the speed of the muzzle blast, and I have the feeling that we do not have that information available to us now. In short, you recall my question earlier.

Mr. BLAKEY. Mr. Fauntroy, I think we may.

Mr. FAUNTROY. I would like to know about the pistols fired. Mr. BLAKEY. Mr. Cornwell is looking at a Gun Digest that may have that data in it.

Mr. FAUNTROY. Very good. Mr. Chairman, I will yield at this point.

Mr. CORNWELL. Mr. Chairman, the Gun Digest which we have previously admitted as JFK exhibit F-673 does reflect that there were pistols available on the market in 1963 which fired ammunition supersonically, above the speed of sound.

Mr. FAUNTROY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman STOKES. Any members seeking further recognition.

Mr. Cornwell, do you have a further request of the Chair?

Mr. CORNWELL. Yes, Mr. Chairman. I might request that you consider asking Mr. Aschkenasy and Professor Weiss if they could provide us in some written form a supplement for this record which would correspond to the diagrams they previously drew on the blackboard and, of course, which we lost in the process of erasing and creating subsequent diagrams.

Mr. WEISS. Yes, we can.

Mr. DODD. Mr. Chairman, may I make an additional request. We are going to have Dr. Barger on this afternoon, and I think it would be highly appropriate if we had both of our present witnesses with him at the time so that if there are questions that would be asked of Dr. Barger that he may want to refer to either Dr. Weiss or Dr. Aschkenasy, they would be right there so we would have some consistency in the questioning.

Chairman STOKES. As long as the gentlemen can be available to us, the committee would appreciate it.

Professor Weiss, Mr. Aschkenasy, at the conclusion of witnesses testimony before our committee——

Mr. BLAKEY. Excuse me, Mr. Chairman. I would note Mr. Aschkenasy has a religious obligation that will prevent him from being here this afternoon. And I think Mr. Weiss could make it.

Mr. WEISS. Yes.

Chairman STOKES. Professor Weiss, Mr. Aschkenasy, at the conclusion of a witness testimony before our committee, the witness has 5 minutes during which time they may in any way explain or amplify their testimony before this committee. I would extend to the two of you at this time 5 minutes for that purpose, if you so desire.

Mr. WEISS. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I will not take very much time at all. I simply would like to take this opportunity, as I did in the executive session, to put on the record my appreciation for the great work of the committee staff in getting information to us that we had requested that was important in our analysis.

I also would like to express my deep appreciation for the fine cooperation of the New York City Police Department in arranging for and performing for us the various experiments that were conducted at their firing range and that really greatly helped us to understand better what we were looking at.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman STOKES. Well, thank you, and on behalf of the committee I certainly want to thank both of you for the time you expended, the cooperation you have given to both the staff and this committee, and for the testimony that you have rendered here in this hearing room today. We are indebted to both of you and thank you very much.

Mr. WEISS. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. ASCHKENASY. Thank you.

Chairman STOKES. The Chair recognizes Professor Blakey.

Mr. BLAKEY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

As you will recall, the time span between the shots allegedly fired by Oswald from the Texas School Book Depository itself potentially raises the specter of a conspiracy. FBI expert testimony to the Warren Commission indicated that Oswald's rifle could not be aimed and fired in less than 2.25 to 2.3 seconds. Consequently, for the Commission to conclude that Oswald fired two or more shots, there had to be at least that time interval between them.

The acoustics project has now made available to the committee evidence indicating that shots 1 and 2 from the depository were 1.59 seconds apart. If the FBI expert testimony is correct, Oswald could not have been firing alone from the Texas School Book Depository building—there had to be another gunman.

As you will also recall, Mr. Chairman, I reported to the committee on September 11 the results of preliminary tests conducted by the staff at the Metropolitan Police Department firing range in Lorton, Va, under the general supervision of Sgt. Cecil Kirk. Those tests established that a Mannlicher-Carcano could be operated accurately in considerably less time than had been indicated by the FBI.

I indicated in September that these were preliminary tests and that more refined tests would be subsequently performed. They had been scheduled for the early part of December. Unfortunately, Sergeant Kirk had to undergo surgery, delaying the test results. Delayed test results are, therefore, not expected until the first of the year. Nevertheless, the preliminary tests are sufficient to cast into serious doubt the previously established FBI time intervals.

The difference between the two sets of tests may be accounted for by the simple fact that a telescopic sight was used by the FBI, while the open iron sights of the Mannlicher-Carcano were used by committee staff marksmen. It is the view of the committee's expert firearms panel that the open sights on Oswald's Mannlicher-Carcano would have been preferred, given the conditions in Dealey Plaza in 1963. It is worth noting that in firing tests for the committee in Dealey Plaza in August 1978, Dallas Police Department marksmen, using open iron sights, had no difficulty hitting their targets.

The results of the acoustics project not only led the committee to reexamine the FBI firing data, it also led the committee to look for a policeman on a motorcycle. The acoustics experts had predicted that the motorcycle with the stuck microphone was located in an area where neither they nor the committee had seen a motorcycle. If it could be proved that no motorcycle was in the predicted location at the time of the shots, then serious doubt would be raised about the reliability of the acoustics project. Similarly, when Professor Weiss and Mr. Aschkenasy later told the committee that their analysis of the waveforms indicated that the microphone was probably located on the left side of the motorcycle, no one knew the identity of the officer, or if, in fact, his microphone was mounted on the left.

The committee then began a review of the available documentation and film coverage of the motorcade to see if the acoustics predictions could be verified. It was a classic, scientific experiment. Our first efforts were disappointing. We found a picture of a DPD motorcycle parked in front of the Texas School Book Depository, showing its microphone mounted on the right side, not the left, and we could not find a motorcycle that appeared to be in the right location in Dealey Plaza.

Nevertheless, the investigation continued. The initial plans of the Dallas Police Department specified that the motorcade would be led by five motorcycles, followed closely by the lead car containing Chief Curry, and then the Presidential limousine. Eight motorcycles were to flank the Presidential limousine, four to its left and four to the right rear side. Motion pictures of the actual motorcade reflect that the initial plans were altered slightly on the morning of November 22, and only four motorcycles remained close to the Presidential limousine during the motorcade, two on each side. The other four, ridden by Officers McLain and Courson on the left and Baker and Haygood on the right, were spaced throughout the parade route at varying distances, but generally several car lengths separated them and they were behind the Presidential limousine. Ultimately, the committee found film coverage, however, of the motorcycle in Dealey Plaza showing a bikeman on Houston Street several car lengths behind the Presidential limousine as it turned in front of the Texas School Book Depository from Houston onto Elm, the place that the acoustics project suggested it would be. The officer riding that motorcycle has been identified as Officer H. B. McLain.

It would be appropriate now, Mr. Chairman, to call Officer McLain.

Chairman STOKES. The committee calls Officer McLain.

Mr. McLain, may I ask you to raise your right hand, please, and be sworn?

Do you solemnly swear the testimony you are about to give before this committee is the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth, so help you God?

Mr. McLain. I do.

Chairman STOKES. Thank you. You may be seated.

The Chair recognizes counsel, Gary Cornwell.

TESTIMONY OF POLICE OFFICER H. B. McLAIN, DALLAS POLICE DEPARTMENT, DALLAS, TEX.

Mr. CORNWELL. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. McLain, what is your present occupation?

Mr. McLAIN. Police officer, city of Dallas.

Mr. CORNWELL. How long have you been so employed?

Mr. McLAIN. I am working on my 26th year.

Mr. CORNWELL. What is the nature of your present assignment with the Dallas Police Department?

Mr. McLAIN. At the present, an accident investigator.

Chairman STOKES. Would the witness please pull the microphone a little closer to him?

Mr. CORNWELL. Directing your attention to 1963, what was the nature of your assignment during that year?

Mr. McLAIN. I was assigned to ride a solo motorcycle.

Mr. CORNWELL. And how long had you been riding a solo motorcycle?

Mr. McLAIN. Approximately 8 years.

Mr. CORNWELL. If I could direct your attention to November 22, 1963, the day that President Kennedy came to Dallas, were you part of the motorcade escort for the motorcade on that day?

Mr. McLAIN. Yes, sir.

Mr. CORNWELL. Mr. Chairman, may I have marked and admitted as JFK exhibit F-679, a memorandum of the Dallas Police Department, dated November 21, 1963?

Chairman STOKES. Without objection.

[The information follows:]